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One.   Meeting Procedures 

 

TAIMIDE TECH. INC. 

Procedures for 2025  

Annual Shareholders’ Meeting 
 

 

 

I.    Call the meeting to order 

II.   Meeting chair’s speech 

III.  Reports 

IV.  Adoption 

V.   Discussion 

VI.  Extempore Motions 

VII. Adjournment 
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Two.    Meeting Agenda 

TAIMIDE TECH. INC. 

Agenda for 2025 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting 
 

 

Meeting time: 9:00 a.m., June 26, 2025 (Thursday) 

Meeting location:  2nd Floor Conference Room, No. 127, Section 3, Wende Road, 

Xinpu Township, Hsinchu County 

I.  Call the meeting to order (report on the total number of shares present) 

II.  Meeting chair’s speech 

III.  Reports 

1. The Company’s 2024 Business Report. 

2. Audit Committee’s review report on 2024 final accounting reports. 

3. Report on the distribution of profit-sharing remuneration for employees and 

directors for the year 2024. 

4. Report on the implementation status of the private placement of common stock 

in 2024. 

IV.  Adoption 

1. The Company’s business report and financial statements for 2024. 

2. Earnings distribution proposal for 2024. 

V.  Discussion 

1. Amendments to the Company’s “Articles of Incorporation”. 

VI.  Extempore Motions 

VII. Adjournment 
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I.  Reports 

No. 1 

Subject:    The Company's 2024 business report is hereby presented for your review. 

Description:  For the 2024 business report, please refer to pages 6~8 of this Handbook (Attachment 

1). 

 

No. 2 

Subject:        Audit Committee's review report on the 2024 final accounting reports is hereby 

presented for your review. 

Description: I. The financial statements of the Company for the year 2024 have been audited by 

CPAs Ya-Yun Chang, Su-Li Feng from Deloitte and Touche and an independent 

auditors’ report with unqualified opinion has been issued, together with the business 

report and the earnings distribution proposal, have been reviewed by the Audit 

Committee and the Audit Committee’s review report has been issued.  

 II.  For the Audit Committee's review report, please refer to page 9 of this Handbook 

(Attachment 2). 

 

No. 3 

Subject:       Distribution of profit-sharing remuneration for employees and directors for the year 

2024 is hereby presented for your review. 

Description: I. The Company's net profit before tax for the year 2024 was NT$273,882,513 before 

deducting profit-sharing remuneration for employees and profit-sharing 

remuneration for directors. In addition, The 10% appropriation as profit-sharing 

remuneration for employees of NT$27,388,251 and 3% as the profit-sharing 

remuneration for directors of NT$8,216,475 were provided in cash. 

 II.  The above profit-sharing remuneration for employees and directors has been 

expensed in 2024 and the amount posted as expense was not materially different 

from the amount proposed to be distributed by the Board of Directors. 

 

No. 4 

Subject:       Report on the implementation status of the private placement of common stock in 2024 

is hereby presented for your review.  

Description: I. To enrich operating capital, prepare for the capital needs of future development, 

and introduce strategic investors, the Company's shareholders' meeting on June 25, 

2024 approved the private placement of common stock for cash capital increase, 

with the number of shares to be issued within the limit of not more than 10,000,000 

shares, and up to a maximum of three times of issue within one year from the date 

of the resolution.  

 II.  After the resolution of the 2024 annual shareholders’ meeting, the Company had 

not yet conducted the private placement of common stock, and the unissued number 

of shares was cancelled as resolved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 

May 9, 2025. 
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II. Adoption 

No. 1   Proposed by the Board of Directors 

Subject:        Business report and financial statements for 2024 are hereby presented for your 

adoption. 

Description: I. The financial statements of the Company for the year 2024 were approved by the 

Board of Directors on March 7, 2025, and have been audited by CPAs Ya-Yun 

Chang, Su-Li Feng from Deloitte and Touche and an independent auditors’ report 

with unqualified opinion has been issued, together with the business report and the 

earnings distribution proposal, have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. 

 II.  Please refer to pages 6~8 (Attachment 1) and 10~30 (Attachment 3) of this 

Handbook for 2024 business report, independent auditors’ report and the above 

financial statements. 

Resolution: 

 

No. 2   Proposed by the Board of Directors 

Subject:   2024 earnings distribution proposal is hereby presented for your adoption. 

Description: I. For the 2024 earnings distribution table, please refer to page 31 of this Handbook 

(Attachment 4). 

 II.  Cash dividends of NT$163,410,796 are proposed to be appropriated from the 

distributable earnings of 2024, with NT$1.20 per share to be distributed, calculated 

up to NT$1 and rounded off below NT$1; the total amount of the fractional amounts 

of less than NT$1 is included in other income of the Company. 

 III. The chairperson is authorized to set the ex-dividend date, payment date and other 

related matters after the proposal is approved by the regular shareholders' meeting. 

 IV. If the number of outstanding shares is affected due to a change in the Company's 

capital stock, resulting in a change in the dividend distribution rate, it is proposed 

to request the regular shareholders' meeting to authorize the chairperson to handle 

the matter in accordance with the Company Act or related laws and regulations. 

Resolution: 

 

 

III. Discussion 

No. 1   Proposed by the Board of Directors 

Subject:        Amendments to the Company's “Articles of Incorporation” are hereby presented for 

your discussion. 

Description: I. Pursuant to the announcement of Hua-Zong-I-Yi-Zi No. 11300069631 dated 

August 7, 2024 and Paragraph 6, Article 14 of the Securities and Exchange Act, it 

is proposed to amend certain provisions of the Company's “Articles of 

Incorporation”. 

 II.  Please refer to page 32~33 of this Handbook (Attachment 5) for a comparison of 

the current and amended provisions of the “Articles of Incorporation”. 

Resolution: 
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IV. Extempore Motions 

 

 

V. Adjournment 



6 

Three.   Attachments 

I. 2024 Business Report 

Attachment 1 

I. Implementation results of business plan: 

In 2024, the global economy demonstrated a strong recovery, overcoming geopolitical 

tensions and internal uncertainties in major economies. As central banks around the world 

continued to adjust their monetary policies, inflationary pressures eased significantly, leading 

to a stabilization of capital flows. The gradual return of global supply chain to normal 

operations, coupled with the continued growth of international trade, played a significant role 

in the rebound of business momentums. With the concerted efforts of all employees, the 

Company experienced steady growth in 2024, with strong demand for its PI films in the 

markets of mobile phone FPC, heat dissipation modules, electric vehicle battery coating, 

insulation materials, and FC applications. In addition, through improved production efficiency 

and flexible capacity allocation, overall manufacturing costs were effectively reduced, leading 

to growth in both revenue and net profit for the year. 

The Company adheres to the philosophy of sustainable development and actively 

promotes the transformation towards the circular economy. In terms of energy management 

and carbon emission control, the Company continues to promote carbon reduction actions, 

including the replacement of obsolete equipment, enhancement of the efficiency of energy use, 

and optimization of the management of water resources, in order to proactively reduce its 

environmental footprint. Meanwhile, the Company will strengthen its technological research 

and development capabilities and increase its investment in high-end materials and new 

applications to capitalize on the long-term growth opportunities in new energy, semiconductor 

and consumer electronics industries. 

In summary, the Company's operating performance for 2024 is as follows: 

The consolidated revenue was NT$2,246,579 thousand and the net profit after tax was 

NT$224,065 thousand; compared with the previous year, the consolidated revenue increased 

by 41.03% and the net profit after tax increased by 245.98%; the earnings per share was 

NT$1.79, the consolidated gross profit margin was 27.77% and the operating profit margin 

was 9.38%. 

II.  Budget implementation status: 

The Board of Directors approved the Company's budget for 2024, but the financial 

forecast has not been made public. 

III. Financial receipts and expenditures and profitability analysis 

Unit: Thousands of NTD 

Year 

Item 
2024 2023 

Increase 

(Decrease) % 

F
in

an
cial 

receip
ts 

an
d
 

ex
p

en
d
itu

res 

Net operating revenue 2,246,579 1,593,021 41.03 

Operating gross profit 623,949 241,361 158.51 

Profit or loss after tax 224,065 (153,485) 245.98 

P
ro

fitab
ility

  

Return on assets (%) 5.11 (2.51) － 

Return on equity (%) 7.69 (5.24) － 

Operating profit to paid-in capital (%) 15.94 (9.53) － 

Net profit after tax to paid-in capital (%) 17.22 (10.71) － 

Net profit margin (%) 9.97 (9.63) － 

Earnings (Losses) per share (NTD) (net 

of tax) 
1.79 (1.06) － 
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IV. R&D overview: 

TAIMIDE continues to deepen its product technology development to provide materials 

for mobile devices, automotive devices and soft display applications, providing customers 

with high quality, high value-added, competitive and new application solutions. TAIMIDE’s 

research and development is focused on the following three main directions. 

(I) PI films for FPC application: 

1. Ultra-thin, large and stable PI films: The increasing demand for high-density 

applications such as portable and wearable devices, AI smart integration, and 

Mini & Micro LEDs is bound to increase the demand for dimensional stability 

and thinness of flexible substrates. 

2. PI films for high frequency and high speed: For the advent of the 5G era, we 

continue to develop PFAS-free PI films that combine the low moisture 

absorption, low dielectric, and low signal loss with excellent high temperature 

resistance, dimensional stability, and mechanical and processing 

characteristics. In addition, we are developing a new generation of PI 

composite material formulation technology for hybrid LCP to support the 

digital high speed transmission of the B5G/6G millimeter wave generation and 

high frequency signal reception antenna application products to meet the 

advent of the new communication era. 

3. PI films for automotive: It is used in the electric vehicle industry for the key 

power battery packaging and battery power management systems (BMS) 

conduction connection with insulation materials and flexible board, mainly as 

an answer to the requirements for high reliability and lightweight. 

(II) PI films for optoelectronic applications 

1. Transparent PI films: We continue to develop the key materials required by 

foldable screens, mainly used in foldable touch and cover, and the products are 

foldable mobile phones and other mobile information and communication 

devices. 

2. Advanced packaging tapes: We develop special tapes based on PI, which are 

suitable for grinding and thinning for advanced packaging processes of high-

density semiconductors, heat resistance and viscosity reduction required for 

special processes (high temperature, sputtering, etc.), temporary tapes for high-

density circuit board substrate processes and Mass Transfer of Micro LEDs, 

etc., and are designed and imported in a customized way by our customers. 

(III) PI films for functional applications other than FPC: Such as thick PI graphite film 

sintering with high heat flux, PI films with high thermal conductivity, etc., which 

are mainly used for heat dissipation of mobile information and communication 

devices and modules for in-vehicle heating and temperature control. 

Looking ahead, the Company will continue to focus on the development of high-

performance polyimide (PI) film products and accelerate the research and development of 

forward-looking technologies and innovative applications to meet the growing market demand 

for high-end materials. With the steady global economy, the increasing supply chain stability, 

and the rapid development of the new energy industry, semiconductors, and high-frequency 

and high-speed communications in 2024, the Company will actively seize market 

opportunities, accumulate technological capabilities, and continue to optimize its product 

portfolio to build up its competitive advantages. The Company will continue to promote digital 

transformation and improve production efficiency, optimize operational efficiency through 

lean management, and proactively explore business opportunities in the global market to 

increase the Company's competitiveness in the global industrial chain. 

In terms of sustainable development, the Company will continue to fulfill its ESG 

commitment and endeavor to harmonize the environment and society. We will promote zero 

wastewater discharge, strengthen the solvent recycling mechanism, and further reduce carbon 
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emissions to meet the global trend of carbon reduction and requirements of the green supply 

chain. In 2024, the regulatory standards for sustainable corporate governance in various 

countries became ever stringent, and the Company will continue to optimize its green 

processes to ensure that its operations meet international standards to pursue co-existence and 

co-prosperity between business, society and the environment. 

In the face of the global economic recovery and changes in the industries, all employees 

of the Company will make every effort to enhance our competitiveness on all fronts, respond 

to market demands with superior products and technologies, and continue to create maximum 

value for our shareholders, thus laying a solid foundation for the long-term development of 

the Company. 

Chairperson of the Board of 

Directors    
Managerial Officer    

 

Accounting Officer  

   

 



9 

II. Audit Committee’s review report on 2024 final accounting reports 

Attachment 2 

 

TAIMIDE TECH. INC. 

Audit Committee's review report  
 

 

The 2024 financial statements of the Company (including the consolidated financial statements) 

prepared by the Board of Directors have been audited and attested by CPAs Ya-Yun Chang, Su-Li 

Feng from Deloitte Taiwan, who issued an independent auditors’ report. The financial statements 

together with the business report, earnings distribution proposal have been reviewed and determined 

to be accurate by the Audit Committee. In accordance with Article 14 of the Securities and Exchange 

Act and Article 219 of the Company Act, we hereby submit this review report for your review. 

 

 

To 

 

The 2025 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAIMIDE TECH. INC. 

Convener of the Audit Committee: Chien-Ju Lin 

 

 

 

 

 

March 7, 2025 
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III. Independent Auditors’ Report 

Attachment 3 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of TAIMIDE TECH. INC.: 

 

Audit opinions 

We have audited the accompanying standalone balance sheets of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. as of 

December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related standalone statements of comprehensive income, 

changes in equity, cash flows, and notes to the standalone financial statements (including a summary 

of significant accounting policies) for the years then ended. 

In our opinion, based on our audits, the standalone financial statements referred to above present 

fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. as of December 31, 

2024 and 2023, and its standalone financial performance and cash flows for the years then ended, in 

conformity with the requirements of Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 

Securities Issuers. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation 

of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards. Our responsibilities 

under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

standalone Financial Statements section of our report. Independently governed staff in the accounting 

firm that the CPAs belong to have followed moral regulations in honor of the profession of CPA and 

have remained independent of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and fulfilled other responsibilities under the 

said regulations. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 

in our audit of the standalone financial statements of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. for the year ended 

December 31, 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone 

financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these matters. 
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Key audit matters for the standalone financial statements of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. for the year 

ended December 31, 2024 are stated as follows: 

Authenticity of sales revenue 

TAIMIDE TECH. INC. was affected by the recovery of demand in the overall market in 2024. 

We compared the annual sales growth rates of the major sales of customers to 2023. If their sales 

increased in 2024 more than the average growth rate and had a significant difference from the overall 

sales trend in the market, the sales revenue of these customers was considered as a source of potential 

fraud risk and was therefore judged to be a key audit matter, and audit procedures performed for these 

customers to address the above risk were as follows: 

1. To understand and test the internal control system and operating procedures related to the sales 

transaction cycle to confirm and evaluate the effectiveness of the internal control procedures 

related to the sales transactions. 

2. For the breakdown of sales revenue, a sample of the above-mentioned potential risky sales 

customers was selected for audit, and customers and external related certificates were examined 

to confirm the authenticity of sales revenue, and to examine whether the subsequent collection 

from the sales customers was abnormal. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone 

Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the standalone financial 

statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 

Securities Issuers, and for necessary internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 

the preparation of standalone financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error. 

While preparing the standalone financial statements, the management is responsible for also 

evaluating the ability of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. to continue with the operation and disclosing related 

matters and adopting the accounting basis for continued operation, among others. Unless the 

management intends to liquidate TAIMIDE TECH. INC. or discontinue operation or there are no 

other actually feasible solutions than liquidation or discontinued operation. 

Those charged with governance, Including the Audit Committee, are responsible for overseeing 

the financial reporting process of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. The term of “reasonable assurance” refers to high level 

of assurance. Nevertheless, the audit performed according to the Auditing Standards cannot guarantee 

the discovery of material misstatement in the standalone financial statements. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the 

standalone financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment 

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements due 

to fraud or error, design and adopt appropriate countermeasures for the risks assessed, and obtain 

sufficient and appropriate audit evidence in order to be used as the basis for the opinion. The risk 

of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 

the override of internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the management level. 

4. Reach a conclusion with regard to the adequacy of the accounting basis adopted to continue with 

operation by the management and whether significant uncertainties of events or conditions that 

might result in significant concerns about the ability of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. to continue with 

operation exist or not according to the evidence obtained from the audit. In case where we 

consider that such events or circumstances have a material uncertainty, then relevant disclosure 

of the standalone financial statements are required to be provided in our audit report to allow 

users of standalone financial statements to be aware of such events or circumstances, or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. Future events or conditions, however, 

are likely to result in TAIMIDE TECH. INC. no longer capable of continuing with operation. 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 

including relevant notes, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entity 

of TAIMIDE TECH. INC., and express an opinion on standalone financial statements. We are 

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. 

We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the governance units with statements that we have complied with relevant 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and we have also communicated 

with the governance units on all relationships and other matters (including relevant protective 

measures) that may be considered to affect the independence of auditors. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were most significant in the audit of the 2024 standalone financial statements of 

TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 

auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 

interest benefits of such communication. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deloitte Taiwan 

CPA Chang Ya-Yun 

  

CPA Fang Su-Li 

 

Approval document No. of the Financial 

Supervisory Commission 

Financial Management Certificate Audit Zi 

No. 1110348898 

 Approval document No. of the Financial 

Supervisory Commission 

Financial Management Certificate VI Zi  

No. 0940161384 

 

 

 

 

March 7, 2025



14 

TAIMIDE TECH. INC. 

Standalone Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Unit: Thousands of NTD 

 

    December 31, 2024  December 31, 2023      December 31, 2024  December 31, 2023 

Code  Assets  Amount  ％  Amount  ％  Code  Liabilities and equity  Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

  Current assets            Current liabilities         

1100  Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4, 6 and 31)    $ 354,868     8    $ 319,541     7  2120  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss-

current (Notes 4, 7, 18 and 31) 
        

1136  Financial assets at amortized cost - non-current (Notes 

4, 9, and 31) 
              $ -     -    $ 1,014     - 

      1,980     -     5,626     -  2130  Contract liabilities - current (Notes 4 and 24)     13     -     13     - 
1150  Notes receivable (Notes 4, 10 and 31)     1,947     -     25,073     1  2170  Notes and accounts payable (Note 31)     106,927     2     49,433     1 
1170  Accounts receivable (Notes 4, 10, 24 and 31) 

    356,039     8     229,804     5  
2206  Remuneration payable to employees and directors 

(Note 25)     35,604     1     -     - 

1180  Accounts receivable - related parties (Notes 4, 24, 31 

and 32) 
         2213  Payables for equipment (Note 31)     21,520     1     30,194     1 

      434,199     9     159,062     3  2219  Other payables (Notes 19, 31 and 32)     169,475     4     131,080     3 

1210  Other receivables - related parties (Notes 31 and 32)     10     -     10     -  2230  Current tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 26)     -     -     10,261     - 

1220  Current tax assets (Notes 4 and 26)     5,266     -     -     -  2280  Lease liabilities - current (Notes 4, 14 and 31)     15,423     -     15,023     - 

130X  Inventories (Notes 4, 5 and 11)     346,066     7     439,611     10  2321  Corporate bonds due or with put option exercisable 
within one year (Notes 4, 18 and 31) 

        

1470  Other current assets (Notes 4 and 16)     44,938     1     45,086     1        248,051     5     583,415     13 

11XX  Total current assets     1,545,313     33     1,223,813     27  2322  Long-term loans due within one year (Notes 17, 31 
and 33) 

        

                              343,326     7     246,362     5 

  Non-current assets          2399  Other current liabilities (Notes 4, 20, 29 and 32)         

1517  Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income - non-current (Notes 4, 8 
and 31) 

               14,434     -     35,219     1 

  
    475     -     467     -  

21XX  Total current liabilities 
    954,773     20     1,102,014     24 

1535  Financial assets at amortized cost - non-current (Notes 

4, 9, 31 and 33) 
                                

      16,923     1     16,923     1    Non-current liabilities         

1550  Investment accounted for using the equity method 

(Notes 4 and 12)     105,495     2     106,992     2  
2540  Long-term loans (Notes 17, 31 and 33) 

    675,806     14     580,298     13 
1600  Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4, 5, 13 and 33)          2580  Lease liabilities - non-current (Notes 4, 14 and 31)         

      2,927,983     62     3,111,728     68        79,569     2     94,180     2 

1755  Right-of-use assets (Notes 4 and 14)     90,316     2     104,714     2  2645  Deposits received     19     -     19     - 
1780  Intangible assets (Notes 4 and 15)     16,848     -     6,323     -  25XX  Total non-current liabilities     755,394     16     674,497     15 
1915  Prepayments for equipment     3,227     -     7,891     -                         
1920  Refundable deposits     3,059     -     3,059     -  2XXX    Total liabilities     1,710,167     36     1,776,511     39 
1975  Net defined benefit assets - non-current (Notes 4 and 

21) 
                                

      3,142     -     353     -    Equity (Notes 4, 18, 22 and 23)         

15XX  Total non-current assets     3,167,468     67     3,358,450     73  3110  Common stock capital     1,322,053     28     1,322,053     29 

                        3200  Capital surplus     591,329     13     593,455     13 

              Retained earnings         

            3310  Legal reserve     279,983     6     279,983     6 

            3320  Special reserve     2,635     -     1,586     - 

            3350  Undistributed earnings     807,192     17     611,310     13 

            3300  Total retained earnings     1,089,810     23     892,879     19 

            3400  Other equity   (  578 )     -   (  2,635 )     - 

                                   

            3XXX  Total equity     3,002,614     64     2,805,752     61 

                                   

1XXX  Total assets    $ 4,712,781     100    $ 4,582,263     100    Total liabilities and equity    $ 4,712,781     100    $ 4,582,263     100 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial report. 

 

 

Chairperson: Sheng-Chang Wu Managerial Officer: Chen-Ying Huang Accounting Officer: Tai-Tsun Chen 
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TAIMIDE TECH. INC. 

Standalone Statements of Comprehensive Income 

From January 1 to December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Unit: In thousands of NTD; except earnings (losses) per share in NTD 

 

    2024  2023 

Code    Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

4110  Total operating revenue    $ 2,219,423     100    $ 1,572,167     101 

                       

4170  Returns and discounts on sales     7,670     -     16,264     1 

                       

4100  Net operating revenue (Notes 4, 24 

and 32) 
 

   2,211,753     100     1,555,903     100 

                       

5000  Operating cost (Notes 11, 25 and 

32) 
 

   1,574,988     71     1,278,509     82 

                       

5900  Operating gross profit     636,765     29     277,394     18 

                       

5910  Realized (Unrealized) profit with 

subsidiaries 
 

   13,900     -   (  14,689 )   (  1 ) 

                       

5950  Realized operating profit     650,665     29     262,705     17 

                       

  Operating expense (Note 25)         

6100  Selling expense     25,917     1     36,060     2 

6200  Administrative expense     105,078     5     85,131     6 

6300  Research and development 

expense 
 

   189,391     8     178,205     11 

6450  Expected credit (recovery 

benefits) impairment losses 
 

 (  4 )     -     4     - 

6000  Total operating expense     320,382     14     299,400     19 

                       

6900  Net operating profit (loss)      330,283     15   (  36,695 )   (  2 ) 

                       

  Non-operating income and expenses         

7100  Interest income (Note 25)     3,162     -     3,144     - 

7010  Other income (Notes 25, 29 

and 32) 
 

   31,236     1     8,625     1 

7020  Other gain and loss (Note 25)     14,044     1     6,170     - 

 

(Continued on next page) 
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    2024  2023 

Code    Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

7050  Financial costs (Notes 4 and 

25) 

 

 ( $ 27,382 )   (  1 )   ( $ 29,027 )   (  2 ) 

7070  Share of loss of subsidiaries 

accounted for using the 

equity method 

 

 (  113,066 )   (  5 )   (  79,777 )   (  5 ) 

7000  Total non-operating 

income and expense 

 

 (  92,006 )   (  4 )   (  90,865 )   (  6 ) 

                       

7900  Net profit (loss) before tax     238,277     11   (  127,560 )   (  8 ) 

                       

7950  Income tax expense (Notes 4 and 

26) 

 

   1,924     -     11,708     1 

                       

8200  Net profit (loss) for the year     236,353     11   (  139,268 )   (  9 ) 

                       

  Other comprehensive income         

8310  Items not reclassified 

subsequently to profit or 

loss: 

 

       

8311  Remeasurement of 

defined benefit plans 

(Note 21) 

 

   240     -   (  1,223 )     - 

8316  Unrealized valuation 

gain or loss on 

investments in equity 

instruments at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive 

income (Note 22) 

 

   8     -     28     - 

8360  Items that may be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or 

loss: 

 

       

8380  Share of other 

comprehensive 

income of 

subsidiaries 

accounted for using 

the equity method 

(Note 22) 

 

   2,049     -   (  1,077 )     - 

8300  Other comprehensive 

income for the year 

 

   2,297     -   (  2,272 )     - 

                       

8500  Total comprehensive income for the 

year 

 

  $ 238,650     11   ( $ 141,540 )   (  9 ) 

                       

  Earnings (Losses) per share (Note 

27) 

 

       

9750  Basic    $ 1.79        ( $ 1.06 )      

9850  Diluted    $ 1.76        ( $ 1.06 )      

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial report. 

 

 

 

Chairperson: Sheng-Chang Wu Managerial Officer: Chen-Ying Huang               Accounting Officer: Tai-Tsun Chen 
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TAIMIDE TECH. INC. 

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity 

From January 1 to December 31, 2024 and 2023 
Unit: Thousands of NTD 

 

                Other equity   

                

Exchange differences on 

translation of the 
financial statements of 

foreign operations 

 

Unrealized gain or loss 

on financial assets at fair 
value through other 

comprehensive income 

  

                   

    Common stock capital    Retained earnings     

Code     Number of shares (in 

thousands)  
 

Amount  Capital surplus  Legal reserve  Special reserve  Undistributed earnings 
   

Total equity 

A1  Balance at January 1, 2023     131,799    $ 1,317,990    $ 582,422    $ 264,789    $ 2,538    $ 845,122   ( $ 1,555 )   ( $ 31 )    $ 3,011,275 

                                                

  Distribution of earnings for 2022                   
B1  Legal reserve     -     -     -     15,194     -   (  15,194 )     -     -     - 

B17  Reversal of special reserve     -     -     -     -   (  952 )     952     -     -     - 

B5  Cash dividends to shareholders      -     -     -     -     -   (  79,079 )     -     -   (  79,079 ) 

                                                

  Changes in other capital surplus:                   
C17  Unclaimed dividends to shareholders after the 

statute of limitations 
 

   -     -     23     -     -     -     -     -     23 

                                                

D1  Net loss for 2023     -     -     -     -     -   (  139,268 )     -     -   (  139,268 ) 

                                                
D3  Other comprehensive income for 2023     -     -     -     -     -   (  1,223 )   (  1,077 )     28   (  2,272 ) 

                                                

D5  Total comprehensive income for 2023     -     -     -     -     -   (  140,491 )   (  1,077 )     28   (  141,540 ) 

                                                

N1  Share-based payment transaction     406     4,063     11,010     -     -     -     -     -     15,073 

                                                
Z1  Balance at December 31, 2023     132,205     1,322,053     593,455     279,983     1,586     611,310   (  2,632 )   (  3 )     2,805,752 

                                                

  Distribution of earnings for 2023                   

B1  Legal reserve     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     - 
B3  Provision of special reserve     -     -     -     -     1,049   (  1,049 )     -     -     - 
B5  Cash dividends to shareholders      -     -     -     -     -   (  39,662 )     -     -   (  39,662 ) 

                                                

  Changes in other capital surplus:                   

C17  Unclaimed dividends to shareholders after the 
statute of limitations 

 
   -     -     30     -     -     -     -     -     30 

                                                

D1  Net profit for 2024     -     -     -     -     -     236,353     -     -     236,353 

                                                

D3  Other comprehensive income for 2024     -     -     -     -     -     240     2,049     8     2,297 

                                                
D5  Total comprehensive income for 2024     -     -     -     -     -     236,593     2,049     8     238,650 

                                                

M7  Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries     -     -   (  2,292 )     -     -     -     -     -   (  2,292 ) 

                                                

N1  Share-based payment transaction of subsidiaries     -     -     136     -     -     -     -     -     136 

                                                
Z1  Balance at December 31, 2024     132,205    $ 1,322,053    $ 591,329    $ 279,983    $ 2,635    $ 807,192   ( $ 583 )    $ 5    $ 3,002,614 

 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial report. 

 

 
 

Chairperson: Sheng-Chang Wu Managerial Officer: Chen-Ying Huang Accounting Officer: Tai-Tsun Chen 
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TAIMIDE TECH. INC. 

Standalone Statements of Cash Flows 

From January 1 to December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Unit: Thousands of NTD 

Code    2024  2023 

  Cash flows from operating activities     

A10000  Net profit (loss) before tax for the year    $ 238,277   ( $ 127,560 ) 

A20010  Income and expense items     

A20100  Depreciation expense     334,509     326,502 

A20200  Amortization expense     3,748     3,233 

A20300  Expected credit (recovery benefits) 

impairment losses 

 

 (  4 )     4 

A20400  Net profit on financial assets and liabilities at 

fair value through profit or loss 

 

 (  1,014 )   (  2,880 ) 

A20900  Financial cost     27,382     29,027 

A21200  Interest income   (  3,162 )   (  3,144 ) 

A21900  Share-based payment remuneration cost     160     - 

A22400  Share of loss of subsidiaries accounted for 

using the equity method 

 

   113,066     79,777 

A22500  Loss on disposal of property, plant and 

equipment 

 

   2,366     - 

A23700  Loss on (Gain on reversal of) decline in 

value of inventories  

 

 (  38,342 )     60,887 

A23900  (Realized) unrealized profit with subsidiaries   (  13,900 )     14,689 

A24100  Net (gain) loss on foreign currency exchange   (  6,757 )     3,571 

A24200  Loss on repurchase or redemption of 

corporate bonds 

 

   6,583     - 

A30000  Net changes in operating assets and liabilities     

A31130  Notes receivable     23,126   (  23,370 ) 

A31150  Accounts receivable   (  121,003 )     14,525 

A31160  Accounts receivable - related parties   (  275,137 )   (  127,608 ) 

A31190  Other receivables - related parties     -   (  8 ) 

A31200  Inventories     131,887     107,791 

A31240  Other current assets     127     11,099 

A31990  Net defined benefit assets   (  2,549 )   (  455 ) 

A32125  Contract liabilities     -     4 

A32150  Notes and accounts payable     56,858     32,494 

A32180  Other payables     38,106   (  3,478 ) 

A32230  Other current liabilities   (  20,785 )     29,833 

A32990  Remuneration payable to employees and 

directors  

 

   35,604   (  21,520 ) 

A33000  Net cash inflows from operations     529,146     403,413 

A33100  Interest received     3,183     3,137 

A33300  Interest paid   (  19,349 )   (  18,180 ) 

A33500  Income tax paid   (  17,451 )   (  15,318 ) 

AAAA  Net cash in-flows from operating activities     495,529     373,052 

             

 

(Continued on next page) 
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Code    2024  2023 

  Cash flows from investing activities     

B00040  Acquisition of financial assets at amortized 

cost 
 

  $ -   ( $ 5,626 ) 

B00050  Disposal of financial assets at amortized cost      3,646     - 

B01800  Acquisition of long-term equity investments 

accounted for using the equity method 
 

 (  97,936 )     - 

B02700  Purchase of property, plant and equipment   (  146,464 )   (  135,971 ) 

B02800  Disposal of property, plant and equipment     35     - 

B04500  Purchase of intangible asset   (  14,273 )   (  711 ) 

B07100  Increase in prepayments for equipment      -   (  3,339 ) 

B07200  Decrease in prepayments for equipment      4,664     - 

BBBB  Net cash outflows from investing 

activities 
 

 (  250,328 )   (  145,647 ) 

             

  Cash flows from financing activities     

C00100  Increase in short-term loans     10,000     260,000 

C00200  Decrease in short-term loans   (  10,000 )   (  350,000 ) 

C01300  Repayment of corporate bonds   (  349,700 )     - 

C01600  Borrowing of long-term loans     420,000     300,000 

C01700  Repayment of long-term loans   (  227,528 )   (  383,760 ) 

C04020  Repayment of principal for lease liabilities   (  15,149 )   (  14,685 ) 

C04500  Cash dividends to shareholders   (  39,662 )   (  79,079 ) 

C04800  Employee exercise of stock options     -     15,073 

C09900  Unclaimed dividends to shareholders after the 

statute of limitations 
 

   30     23 

CCCC  Net cash outflows from financing 

activities 
 

 (  212,009 )   (  252,428 ) 

             

DDDD  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 

equivalents 
 

   2,135   (  957 ) 

             

EEEE  Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents      35,327   (  25,980 ) 

             

E00100  Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the 

beginning of the year 
 

   319,541     345,521 

             

E00200  Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of 

the year 
 

  $ 354,868    $ 319,541 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial report. 

 

Chairperson: Sheng-Chang Wu Managerial Officer: Chen-Ying Huang                Accounting Officer: Tai-Tsun Chen 
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Representation Letter 

 

 

We hereby declare that we have confirmed, as identical, the companies which shall be included 

in the consolidated financial statements of the affiliates and the ones which shall be included in the 

consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS 10; the related information has been 

disclosed in consolidated financial statements and will hence not be included in consolidated financial 

statements of the affiliates for the year ended December 31, 2024, (January 1 to December  31, 2024) 

in accordance with "Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports" and "Consolidated 

Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises." 

Declared by 

 

 

 

 

                                                      Company name: TAIMIDE TECH. INC. 

 

                                                      Person in Charge: Sheng-Chang Wu 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 7, 2025 

  



21 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of TAIMIDE TECH. INC.: 

 

 

Audit opinions 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and 

its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related consolidated statements of 

comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity, consolidated statements of cash 

flows, and notes to the consolidated financial statements (including a summary of significant 

accounting policies) for the years then ended.  

In our opinion, based on our audits, the consolidated financial statements referred to above 

present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and its 

subsidiaries as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its consolidated financial performance and cash 

flows for the years then ended, are in conformity with the requirements of the Regulations Governing 

the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC 

Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation 

of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards. Our responsibilities 

under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. Independently governed staff in the 

accounting firm that the CPAs belong to have followed moral regulations in honor of the profession 

of CPA and have remained independent of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and its subsidiaries and fulfilled 

other responsibilities under the said regulations. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 

in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and its subsidiaries 

for the year ended December 31, 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 

the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Key audit matters for the consolidated financial statements of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and its 

subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2024 are stated as follows: 

Authenticity of sales revenue 

TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and subsidiaries were affected by the recovery of demand in the overall 

market in 2024. We compared the annual sales growth rates of the major sales of customers to 2023. 

If their sales increased in 2024 more than the average growth rate and had a significant difference 

from the overall sales trend in the market, the sales revenue of these customers was considered as a 

source of potential fraud risk and was therefore judged to be a key audit matter, and audit procedures 

performed for these customers to address the above risk were as follows: 

1. To understand and test the internal control system and operating procedures related to the sales 

transaction cycle to confirm and evaluate the effectiveness of the internal control procedures 

related to the sales transactions. 

2. For the breakdown of sales revenue, a sample of the above-mentioned potential risky sales 

customers was selected for audit, and customers and external related certificates were examined 

to confirm the authenticity of sales revenue, and to examine whether the subsequent collection 

from the sales customers was abnormal. 

Other Matters 

TAIMIDE TECH. INC. has prepared the parent company only financial statements for 2024 and 

2023, to which we have also issued an independent auditors’ report with unqualified opinion on record 

for reference. 

Responsibilities of Management Level and Those Charged with Governance for the 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 

Securities Issuers and the IFRS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial 

Supervisory Commission of the R.O.C., and for necessary internal control as management determines 

is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

While preparing the consolidated financial statements, the management is responsible for also 

evaluating the ability of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and its subsidiaries to continue with the operation 

and disclosing related matters and adopting the accounting basis for continued operation, among 

others. Unless the management intends to liquidate TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and its subsidiaries or 

discontinue operation or there are no other actually feasible solutions than liquidation or discontinued 

operation. 

Those charged with governance, Including the Audit Committee, are responsible for overseeing 

the financial reporting process of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and its subsidiaries. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. The term of “reasonable assurance” refers to high level 

of assurance. Nevertheless, the audit performed according to the Auditing Standards cannot guarantee 
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the discovery of material misstatement in the consolidated financial statements. Misstatements can 

arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 

the consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment 

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements due 

to fraud or error, design and adopt appropriate countermeasures for the risks assessed, and obtain 

sufficient and appropriate audit evidence in order to be used as the basis for the opinion. The risk 

of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 

the override of internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and its subsidiaries. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the management level. 

4. Reach a conclusion with regard to the adequacy of the accounting basis adopted to continue with 

operation by the management and whether significant uncertainties of events or conditions that 

might result in significant concerns about the ability of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and its 

subsidiaries to continue with operation exist or not according to the evidence obtained from the 

audit. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 

auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. Future events or conditions, however, 

are likely to result in TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and its subsidiaries no longer capable of continuing 

with operation. 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including relevant notes, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entity 

of TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and its subsidiaries, and express an opinion on consolidated financial 

statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of 

TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and its subsidiaries. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the governance units with statements that we have complied with relevant 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and we have also communicated 

with the governance units on all relationships and other matters (including relevant protective 

measures) that may be considered to affect the independence of auditors. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significant in the audit of the 2024 consolidated financial statements of 

TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and its subsidiaries and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 

matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 

or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 

our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 

the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

 

 

 

Deloitte Taiwan 

CPA Chang Ya-Yun 

  

CPA Fang Su-Li 

 

Approval document No. of the Financial 

Supervisory Commission 

Financial Management Certificate Audit Zi 

No. 1110348898 

 Approval document No. of the Financial 

Supervisory Commission 

Financial Management Certificate VI Zi  

No. 0940161384 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 7, 2025 
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TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Unit: Thousands of NTD 

 

    December 31, 2024  December 31, 2023      December 31, 2024  December 31, 2023 

Code  Assets  Amount  ％  Amount  ％  Code  Liabilities and equity  Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

  Current assets            Current liabilities         
1100  Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4, 6 and 31)          2100  Short-term loans (Notes 17, 31 and 33)    $ 120,000     2    $ 105,000     2 

     $ 427,383     9    $ 366,633     8  2120  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss-current (Notes 4, 7, 18 and 31) 

        

1136  Financial assets at amortized cost - non-current 
(Notes 4, 9, and 31) 

                   
      11,980     -     15,626     -        -     -     1,014     - 

1150  Notes receivable (Notes 4, 10 and 31)     206,113     4     75,129     1  2130  Contract liabilities - current (Notes 4 and 24)     3,646     -     3,400     - 

1170  Accounts receivable (Notes 4, 10, 24 and 31)          2170  Notes and accounts payable (Notes 31 and 32)     108,877     2     50,791     1 

  

    513,957     10     322,786     7  2206  Remuneration payable to employees and 

directors (Note 25)     35,604     1     -     - 

1220  Current tax assets (Notes 4 and 26)     5,266     -     -     -  2213  Payables for equipment (Note 31)     21,673     -     30,420     1 
130X  Inventories (Notes 4, 5 and 11)     439,429     9     480,481     10  2219  Other payables (Notes 19 and 31)     189,814     4     144,391     3 

1470  Other current assets (Notes 4 and 16)     68,848     2     64,943     1  2230  Current tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 26)     -     -     10,287     - 

11XX  Total current assets     1,672,976     34     1,325,598     27  2280  Lease liabilities - current (Notes 4, 14 and 31)         
                              22,598     1     22,113     1 

  Non-current assets          2321  Corporate bonds due or with put rights 

exercisable within one year (Notes 4, 18 and 
31) 

        

1517  
Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income - non-current (Notes 

4, 8 and 31) 

           
    248,051     5     583,415     12 

           2322  Long-term loans due within one year (Notes 17, 

31 and 33) 

        

      475     -     467     -        359,090     7     262,700     5 
1535  Financial assets at amortized cost - non-current 

(Notes 4, 9, 31 and 33) 

         2399  Other current liabilities (Notes 4, 20, 29 and 32)         

      16,923     -     16,923     1        15,198     -     35,795     1 

1600  Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4, 5, 13 
and 33) 

         21XX  Total current liabilities     1,124,551     22     1,249,326     26 
      3,090,710     62     3,303,570     68                         

1755  Right-of-use assets (Notes 4 and 14)     145,589     3     167,347     4    Non-current liabilities         

1780  Intangible assets (Notes 4 and 15)     19,885     1     7,249     -  2540  Long-term loans (Notes 17, 31 and 33)     699,453     14     619,710     13 
1915  Prepayments for equipment     6,148     -     12,069     -  2580  Lease liabilities - non-current (Notes 4, 14 and 

31) 

        

1920  Refundable deposits     5,072     -     5,044     -        131,210     3     152,992     3 

1975  Net defined benefit assets (Notes 4 and 21)     3,142     -     353     -  2645  Deposits received     19     -     19     - 
15XX  Total non-current assets     3,287,944     66     3,513,022     73  25XX  Total non-current liabilities     830,682     17     772,721     16 

                                               

            2XXX    Total liabilities     1,955,233     39     2,022,047     42 
                                   

              

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 

(Notes 4, 18, 22, 23 and 28)         
               .         

            3110  Common stock capital     1,322,053     27     1,322,053     27 

            3200  Capital surplus     591,329     12     593,455     12 
              Retained earnings         

            3310  Legal reserve     279,983     6     279,983     6 

            3320  Special reserve     2,635     -     1,586     - 
            3350  Undistributed earnings     807,192     16     611,310     13 

            3300  Total retained earnings     1,089,810     22     892,879     19 

            3400  Other equity   (  578 )     -   (  2,635 )     - 
            31XX  Total owners’ equity of the Company     3,002,614     61     2,805,752     58 

                                   

            36XX  Non-controlling interests (Notes 4, 22 and 28)     3,073     -     10,821     - 
                                   

            3XXX  Total equity     3,005,687     61     2,816,573     58 

                                   
1XXX  Total assets    $ 4,960,920     100    $ 4,838,620     100    Total liabilities and equity    $ 4,960,920     100    $ 4,838,620     100 
 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

 

 

Chairperson: Sheng-Chang Wu Managerial Officer: Chen-Ying Huang Accounting Officer: Tai-Tsun Chen 
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TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

From January 1 to December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Unit: In thousands of NTD; except earnings (loss) per share in NTD  

 

    2024  2023 

Code    Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

4110  Total operating revenue    $ 2,256,087     100    $ 1,609,718     101 

                       

4170  Returns and discounts on sales     9,508     -     16,697     1 

                       

4100  Net operating revenue (Notes 4, 24 and 

32) 
 

   2,246,579     100     1,593,021     100 

                       

5000  Operating cost (Notes 11, 25 and 32)     1,622,630     72     1,351,660     85 

                       

5900  Operating gross profit     623,949     28     241,361     15 

                       

  Operating expense (Note 25)         

6100  Selling expense     70,429     3     48,409     3 

6200  Administrative expense     119,304     6     100,746     6 

6300  Research and development 

expense 
 

   223,205     10     218,231     14 

6450  Expected credit impairment losses      204     -     88     - 

6000  Total operating expense     413,142     19     367,474     23 

                       

6900  Net operating profit (loss)      210,807     9   (  126,113 )   (  8 ) 

                       

  Non-operating income and expenses         

7100  Interest income (Note 25)     3,827     -     3,730     - 

7010  Other income (Notes 25, 29 and 

32) 
 

   31,542     1     9,152     1 

7020  Other gain and loss (Note 25)     14,534     1     5,721     - 

7050  Financial costs (Note 25)   (  32,955 )   (  1 )   (  34,124 )   (  2 ) 

7000  Total non-operating income 

and expense 
 

   16,948     1   (  15,521 )   (  1 ) 

                       

7900  Net profit (loss) before tax     227,755     10   (  141,634 )   (  9 ) 

                       

7950  Income tax expense (Notes 4 and 26)     3,690     -     11,851     1 

                       

8200  Net profit (loss) for the year     224,065     10   (  153,485 )   (  10 ) 

                       

 

(Continued on next page) 
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    2024  2023 

Code    Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

  Other comprehensive income         

8310  Items not reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss: 
 

       

8311  Remeasurement of defined 

benefit plans (Note 21) 
 

  $ 240     -   ( $ 1,223 )     - 

8316  Unrealized valuation gain or 

loss on investments in 

equity instruments at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive income 

(Note 22) 

 

   8     -     28     - 

8360  Items that may be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss: 
 

       

8361  Exchange differences on 

translation of the 

financial statements of 

foreign operations (Note 

22) 

 

   2,049     -   (  1,077 )     - 

8300  Other comprehensive 

income for the year 
 

   2,297     -   (  2,272 )     - 

                       

8500  Total comprehensive income for the 

year 
 

  $ 226,362     10   ( $ 155,757 )   (  10 ) 

                       

  Net profit (loss) attributable to:         

8610  Owners of the Company    $ 236,353     11   ( $ 139,268 )   (  9 ) 

8620  Non-controlling interests   (  12,288 )   (  1 )   (  14,217 )   (  1 ) 

8600      $ 224,065     10   ( $ 153,485 )   (  10 ) 

                       

  Total comprehensive income 

attributable to: 
 

       

8710  Owners of the Company    $ 238,650     11   ( $ 141,540 )   (  9 ) 

8720  Non-controlling interests   (  12,288 )   (  1 )   (  14,217 )   (  1 ) 

8700      $ 226,362     10   ( $ 155,757 )   (  10 ) 

                       

  Earnings (Losses) per share (Note 27)         

9750  Basic    $ 1.79        ( $ 1.06 )      

9850  Diluted    $ 1.76        ( $ 1.06 )      

 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

 

 

 

Chairperson: Sheng-Chang Wu Managerial Officer: Chen-Ying Huang               Accounting Officer: Tai-Tsun Chen 
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TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 

From January 1 to December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Unit: Thousands of NTD 

 

    Equity attributable to owners of the Company     

                Other equity       

                

Exchange 

differences on 
translation of the 

financial statements 

of foreign operations 

 Unrealized gain or 

loss on financial 

assets at fair value 
through other 

comprehensive 

income 

      

                       

    Common stock capital    Retained earnings         

Code    
Number of shares 

(in thousands)  Amount  Capital surplus  Legal reserve  Special reserve  

Undistributed 

earnings 

   

Total  

Non-controlling 

interests  Total equity 

A1  Balance at January 1, 2023     131,799    $ 1,317,990    $ 582,422    $ 264,789    $ 2,538    $ 845,122   ( $ 1,555 )   ( $ 31 )    $ 3,011,275    $ 25,038    $ 3,036,313 

                                                          

  Distribution of earnings for 2022                       

B1  Legal reserve     -     -     -     15,194     -   (  15,194 )     -     -     -     -     - 

B17  Reversal of special reserve     -     -     -     -   (  952 )     952     -     -     -     -     - 

B5  Cash dividends to shareholders of the 
Company  

    -     -     -     -     -   (  79,079 )     -     -   (  79,079 )     -   (  79,079 ) 

                                                          

  Changes in other capital surplus:                       
C17  Unclaimed dividends to shareholders after 

the statute of limitations 

    -     -     23     -     -     -     -     -     23     -     23 

                                                          
D1  Net loss for 2023     -     -     -     -     -   (  139,268 )     -     -   (  139,268 )   (  14,217 )   (  153,485 ) 

                                                          

D3  Other comprehensive income for 2023     -     -     -     -     -   (  1,223 )   (  1,077 )     28   (  2,272 )     -   (  2,272 ) 
                                                          

D5  Total comprehensive income for 2023     -     -     -     -     -   (  140,491 )   (  1,077 )     28   (  141,540 )   (  14,217 )   (  155,757 ) 

                                                          
N1  Share-based payment transaction     406     4,063     11,010     -     -     -     -     -     15,073     -     15,073 

                                                          

Z1  Balance at December 31, 2023     132,205     1,322,053     593,455     279,983     1,586     611,310   (  2,632 )   (  3 )     2,805,752     10,821     2,816,573 
                                                          

  Distribution of earnings for 2023                       

B1  Legal reserve     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     - 
B3  Provision of special reserve     -     -     -     -     1,049   (  1,049 )     -     -     -     -     - 

B5  Cash dividends to shareholders of the 

Company  

    -     -     -     -     -   (  39,662 )     -     -   (  39,662 )     -   (  39,662 ) 

                                                          

  Changes in other capital surplus                       

C17  Unclaimed dividends to shareholders after 
the statute of limitations 

    -     -     30     -     -     -     -     -     30     -     30 

                                                          

D1  Net profit for 2024     -     -     -     -     -     236,353     -     -     236,353   (  12,288 )     224,065 
                                                          

D3  Other comprehensive income for 2024     -     -     -     -     -     240     2,049     8     2,297     -     2,297 

                                                          
D5  Total comprehensive income for 2024     -     -     -     -     -     236,593     2,049     8     238,650   (  12,288 )     226,362 

                                                          
M7  Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries     -     -   (  2,292 )     -     -     -     -     -   (  2,292 )     2,292     - 

                                                          

N1  Share-based payment transaction of subsidiaries     -     -     136     -     -     -     -     -     136     184     320 

                                                          

O1  Non-controlling interests     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     2,064     2,064 

                                                          
Z1  Balance at December 31, 2024     132,205    $ 1,322,053    $ 591,329    $ 279,983    $ 2,635    $ 807,192   ( $ 583 )    $ 5    $ 3,002,614    $ 3,073    $ 3,005,687 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

 

 

Chairperson: Sheng-Chang Wu Managerial Officer: Chen-Ying Huang Accounting Officer: Tai-Tsun Chen 
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TAIMIDE TECH. INC. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

From January 1 to December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Unit: Thousands of NTD 

Code    2024  2023 

  Cash flows from operating activities     
A10000  Net profit (loss) before tax for the year    $ 227,755   ( $ 141,634 ) 
A20010  Income and expense items     
A20100  Depreciation expense     377,966     374,471 
A20200  Amortization expense     4,414     3,477 
A20300  Expected credit impairment losses      204     88 
A20400  Net profit on financial assets and 

liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss 

 

 (  1,014 )   (  2,880 ) 
A20900  Financial cost     32,955     34,124 
A21200  Interest income   (  3,827 )   (  3,730 ) 
A21900  Share-based payment remuneration cost     320     - 
A22500  Loss on disposal of property, plant and 

equipment 
 

   2,366     - 
A23700  Loss on (Gain on reversal of) decline in 

value of inventories  
 

 (  36,013 )     70,738 
A24100  Net (gain) loss on foreign currency 

exchange 
 

 (  7,175 )     3,537 
A24200  Loss on repurchase or redemption of 

corporate bonds 
 

   6,583     - 
A30000  Net changes in operating assets and liabilities     
A31130  Notes receivable   (  130,984 )   (  47,162 ) 
A31150  Accounts receivable   (  185,760 )   (  68,826 ) 
A31200  Inventories     77,027     92,589 
A31240  Other current assets   (  3,602 )     13,220 
A31990  Net defined benefit assets   (  2,549 )   (  455 ) 
A32125  Contract liabilities     246     3,239 
A32150  Notes and accounts payable     57,438     32,970 
A32180  Other payables     45,068   (  7,573 ) 
A32230  Other current liabilities   (  20,597 )     29,551 
A32990  Remuneration payable to employees 

and directors  
 

   35,604   (  21,520 ) 
A33000  Net cash inflows from operations     476,425     364,224 
A33100  Interest received     3,524     3,427 
A33300  Interest paid   (  24,856 )   (  23,190 ) 
A33500  Income tax paid   (  19,243 )   (  15,238 ) 
AAAA  Net cash in-flows from operating 

activities 
 

   435,850     329,223 
             

Continued on next page) 



30 

(Continued from previous page) 

 

Code    2024  2023 

  Cash flows from investing activities     

B00040  Acquisition of financial assets at amortized 

cost 

 

  $ -   ( $ 15,626 ) 

B00050  Disposal of financial assets at amortized cost      3,646     - 

B02700  Purchase of property, plant and equipment   (  153,488 )   (  175,570 ) 

B02800  Disposal of property, plant and equipment     35     - 

B03700  Increase in refundable deposits   (  28 )   (  15 ) 

B04500  Purchase of intangible asset   (  17,050 )   (  711 ) 

B07100  Increase in prepayments for equipment      -   (  6,161 ) 

B07200  Decrease in prepayments for equipment      5,921     - 

BBBB  Net cash outflows from investing 

activities 

 

 (  160,964 )   (  198,083 ) 

             

  Cash flows from financing activities     

C00100  Increase in short-term loans     445,000     570,000 

C00200  Decrease in short-term loans   (  430,000 )   (  595,000 ) 

C01300  Repayment of corporate bonds   (  349,700 )     - 

C01600  Borrowing of long-term loans     420,000     300,000 

C01700  Repayment of long-term loans   (  243,867 )   (  406,094 ) 

C04020  Repayment of principal for lease liabilities   (  22,243 )   (  21,760 ) 

C04500  Cash dividends to shareholders   (  39,662 )   (  79,079 ) 

C04800  Employee exercise of stock options     -     15,073 

C05800  Changes in non-controlling interests     2,064     - 

C09900  Unclaimed dividends to shareholders after the 

statute of limitations 

 

   30     23 

CCCC  Net cash outflows from financing 

activities 

 

 (  218,378 )   (  216,837 ) 

             

DDDD  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 

equivalents 

 

   4,242   (  1,988 ) 

             

EEEE  Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents      60,750   (  87,685 ) 

             

E00100  Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the 

beginning of the year 

 

   366,633     454,318 

             

E00200  Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of 

the year 

 

  $ 427,383    $ 366,633 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

 

Chairperson: Sheng-Chang Wu Managerial Officer: Chen-Ying Huang          Accounting Officer: Tai-Tsun Chen 
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IV. 2024 Earnings Distribution Table 

Attachment 4 

TAIMIDE TECH. INC. 

2024 Earnings Distribution Table 
Unit: NTD 

Undistributed earnings at the beginning of the 

period 

 570,598,749 

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans included 

in retained earnings 

240,490  

Undistributed earnings after adjustment  570,839,239 

Net profit for the period 236,353,433  

Provision of legal reserve (10%) (23,659,392) 

Reversal of special reserve as required by law 2,055,945 

Available-for-distribution earnings for the period  785,589,225 

Distribution items    

Cash dividends per share (NT$1.20/Share) (163,410,796) 

Undistributed earnings at the end of the period  622,178,429 

 
Note: Cash dividends were calculated based on the number of outstanding shares of 136,175,663 on 

2025/03/05. 

 If the number of outstanding shares is affected due to a change in the Company's capital stock, 

resulting in a change in the dividend distribution rate, it is proposed to request the regular 

shareholders' meeting to authorize the chairperson to handle the matter in accordance with the 

Company Act or related laws and regulations. 

 

 
Chairperson of the Board of 

Directors 

Managerial Officer Accounting Officer 
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V. Comparison of the Current and Amended Provisions of the Articles of 

Incorporation 

Attachment 5 

Provision before amendments Provision after amendments Description 

Article 32 

If the Company makes a profit in a year, 

the Company shall set aside 6% to 15% of 

the profit as remuneration to employees, in 

stock or cash as resolved by the Board of 

Directors in the form of stock or cash; the 

Company may set aside not more than 3% 

of the above profit as remuneration to 

directors as resolved by the Board of 

Directors. Proposal for profit-sharing 

remuneration for employees and profit-

sharing remuneration for directors should 

be reported to the shareholders' meeting. 

However, if the Company still has 

accumulated losses, the amount of loss 

make-up shall be reserved first, and then 

the profit-sharing remuneration for 

employees and directors can be 

appropriated in accordance with the 

aforementioned percentages. 

Article 32 

If the Company makes a profit in a year, 

the Company shall set aside 6% to 15% of 

the profit as remuneration to employees, in 

stock or cash as resolved by the Board of 

Directors in the form of stock or cash; the 

Company may set aside not more than 3% 

of the above profit as remuneration to 

directors as resolved by the Board of 

Directors. Proposal for profit-sharing 

remuneration for employees and profit-

sharing remuneration for directors should 

be reported to the shareholders' meeting. 

However, if the Company still has 

accumulated losses, the amount of loss 

make-up shall be reserved first, and then 

the profit-sharing remuneration for 

employees and directors can be 

appropriated in accordance with the 

aforementioned percentages. 

No less than 10% of the aforesaid profit-

sharing remuneration for employees 

should be distributed to entry level 

employees. 

Amendments 

were made 

pursuant to the 

announcement 

of Hua-Zong-I-

Yi-Zi No. 

11300069631 

dated August 7, 

2024 and 

Paragraph 6, 

Article 14 of 

the Securities 

and Exchange 

Act. 

The Company's employee stock options, 

employee profit-sharing remuneration, and 

employee stock subscriptions may be 

granted to employees of the holding or 

subordinate companies who meet certain 

criteria. 

The Company's employee stock options, 

employee profit-sharing remuneration, and 

employee stock subscriptions may be 

granted to employees of the holding or 

subordinate companies who meet certain 

criteria. 

Article 35 

These Articles of Incorporation were 

established on June 9, 2000 by a meeting 

of the founders with the consent of all the 

founders. 

Article 35 

These Articles of Incorporation were 

established on June 9, 2000 by a meeting 

of the founders with the consent of all the 

founders. 

The dates of 

amendments 

were added.  

1st amendments May 29, 2003. 

2nd amendments May 25, 2005. 

3rd amendments June 6, 2006. 

4th amendments June 19, 2008. 

5th amendments June 19, 2009. 

6th amendments June 15, 2010. 

7th amendments June 21, 2012. 

8th amendments June 24, 2016. 

1st amendments May 29, 2003. 

2nd amendments May 25, 2005. 

3rd amendments June 6, 2006. 

4th amendments June 19, 2008. 

5th amendments June 19, 2009. 

6th amendments June 15, 2010. 

7th amendments June 21, 2012. 

8th amendments June 24, 2016. 
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9th amendments June 22, 2017. 

10th amendments June 21, 2019. 

11th amendments June 24, 2020. 

12th amendments July 30, 2021. 

13th amendments June 24, 2022. 

14th amendments June 21, 2023 

15th amendments June 25, 2024. 

9th amendments June 22, 2017. 

10th amendments June 21, 2019. 

11th amendments June 24, 2020. 

12th amendments July 30, 2021. 

13th amendments June 24, 2022. 

14th amendments June 21, 2023 

15th amendments June 25, 2024. 

16th amendments June 26, 2025 
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Four.   Appendices 

Appendix 1: Articles of Incorporation (Before Amendments) 

Chapter 1 General Provisions 

Article 1 The Company is organized under the provisions of the Company Act as a corporation 

limited by shares and is named TAIMIDE TECH. INC.  

The English name of the Company is TAIMIDE TECHNOLOGY INCORPORATION. 

Article 2 The businesses of the Company are as follows: 

1. CC01080 Manufacture of Electronic Parts and Components 

2. F119010 Wholesale of Electronic Materials 

3. F219010 Retail Sale of Electronic Materials 

4. F401010 International Trade 

5. C801100 Synthetic Resin & Plastic Manufacturing 

6. C805990 Manufacture of Other Plastic Products 

7. Basic Industrial Chemical Manufacturing 

8. ZZ99999 All business items that are not prohibited or restricted by law, except 

those that are subject to special approval. 

Article 3 The Company has its head office in Hsinchu County, Taiwan, and may establish 

branches in Taiwan and abroad, if necessary, by resolution of the Board of Directors. 

Article 4 The Company's announcement shall be made in accordance with Article 28 of the 

Company Act and other relevant laws and regulations. 

Article 5 The Company may provide endorsement or guarantee for its business needs in 

accordance with the resolutions of the Board of Directors. 

Article 6 In order to achieve the goal of diversified operations, the total amount of the Company's 

investments in other businesses may exceed 40% of the Company's paid-in capital. 

Chapter 2 Shares 

Article 7 The Company's capital is set at NT$2 billion, divided into 200 million shares with a par 

value of NT$10 per share, which are authorized to be issued by the Board of Directors 

in installments, of which 30 million shares are reserved for stock warrants, preferred 

shares with warrants, or corporate bonds with warrants. 

Article 8 The Company's stock certificates shall be in registered form and shall be issued with 

sequential number and shall state the matters set forth in Article 162 of the Company 

Act, and shall be signed or sealed by the directors on behalf of the Company and shall 

be duly certified or authenticated by the bank which is competent to certify shares under 

the laws before issuance thereof: The Company shall be exempted from printing its share 

certificate and shall register the issued shares with a centralized securities depositary 

institution and follow the regulations of that institution. Shares issued under the 

preceding paragraph shall be registered with a centralized securities depositary 

institution and follow the regulations of that institution. 
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Article 9 The transfer of shares shall be effected with the transferor and transferee endorsing the 

stock certificates and filling out the transfer application form respectively, which shall 

be recorded by the Company in the shareholders' roster to complete the transfer 

procedure. Those who request a name change due to inheritance shall submit legal 

documents as proof.  Transfer of shares of the Company shall not be used against the 

Company before the completion of the transfer procedure 

Article 10 If a share certificate is lost, the owner shall immediately report for the loss of the share 

certificate and apply to the competent court for a public notice within five days; after the 

decision of ex-right is confirmed, the owner shall apply for the issuance of a new share 

certificate with the above-mentioned proof. 

The Company's stock affairs are handled in accordance with the "Regulations Governing 

the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies" unless otherwise 

provided by laws and regulations or securities regulations. 

Article 11 The Company may restrict the transfer of shares subscribed by employees upon the 

issuance of new shares for a period of up to two years. 

Article 12 If a pledge is created for shares, the pledgor and the pledgee should fill out an application 

form and register with the Company within three days of the creation of the pledge. The 

pledge may not be used against the Company without such notice. 

Article 13 The transfer of shares shall be suspended within 60 days prior to a regular shareholders' 

meeting, within 30 days prior to an extraordinary shareholders' meeting, or within five 

days prior to the base date on which the Company decides to distribute dividends and 

bonuses or other benefits. 

Chapter 3 Shareholders’ Meeting 

Article 14 The shareholders' meeting shall be divided into two types of meetings: regular and 

interim. The regular meeting shall be convened annually by the Board of Directors within 

six months after the end of each fiscal year. The interim meeting shall be convened when 

necessary in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. 

Article 15 The Company shall announce or notify the shareholders of the date, time, location, and 

the reason for the meeting 30 days in advance for the regular shareholders' meeting and 

15 days in advance for the interim shareholders’ meeting. 

The Company's shareholders' meetings may be held by video conference or other means 

announced by the central competent authorities. If a shareholders' meeting is held by 

video conference, the shareholders who participate in the meeting by video are deemed 

to be present in person. The conditions, operating procedures and other matters to be 

complied with for the holding of a video shareholders' meeting shall be in accordance 

with the provisions of the competent securities authorities. 

Article 16 If a shareholder is unable to attend a shareholders' meeting for any reason, he/she may 

appoint a proxy to attend the shareholders' meeting by issuing a proxy form issued by 

the Company stating the scope of authorization. 

When the Company convenes a shareholders' meeting, shareholders may exercise their 

voting rights in writing or by electronic means, in addition to attending the meeting in 
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person, in accordance with the methods set forth in the notice of the shareholders' 

meeting. 

A shareholder who exercises his or her voting rights in writing or by electronic means is 

deemed to be present in person at the shareholders' meeting. However, extempore 

motions and amendments to the original proposals at that shareholders' meeting are 

deemed as abstention. The declaration of intent is governed by Article 177-2 of the 

Company Act. 

Article 17 The meeting chair of the shareholders' meeting shall be the chairperson. If the 

chairperson is absent from work or unable to exercise his or her duties and 

responsibilities for any reason, the chairperson shall designate one of the directors to act 

on his or her behalf; if the chairperson does not make such a designation, the directors 

shall elect one among themselves to act as the meeting chair. 

Article 18 The shareholders shall have one voting right per share. However, those with 

circumstances specified in Article 179 of the Company Act shall not have any voting 

rights. 

Article 19 The following matters shall be resolved by the shareholders' meeting. 

1. Changes in the Articles of Incorporation. 

2. Merger or dissolution with other companies or conclusion of business contracts 

with other enterprises. 

3. Dissolution of the Company and distribution of properties after dissolution. 

4. Changes in all or a substantial part of the Company's properties. 

5. Business report, adoption of financial statements, earnings distribution or losses 

make-up proposal. 

6. Decision on the election and dismissal of directors. 

7. Acts performed by directors for themselves or others that fall within the scope of 

the Company's business. 

8. Any other matters required by law to be resolved by the shareholders' meeting. 

Article 20 Unless otherwise provided in the Company Act, resolutions of the shareholders' meeting 

shall be made with the presence of shareholders representing a majority of the total 

number of issued shares, and the consent of a majority of the shareholders’ voting rights 

present. 

Article 21 The resolution of the shareholders' meeting shall be made when the Company intends to 

cancel the public offering of its shares, and this Article shall remain unchanged during 

the period when the Company is listed on the Emerging Stock Market and the 

TWSE/TPEx. 

Chapter 4 Directors and Functional Committees 

Article 22 The Company shall have five to nine directors, who shall be elected by the shareholders' 

meeting from among persons capable of conduct for a term of three years and shall be 

eligible for re-election. 

Since 2018, the Company shall adopt a candidate nomination system for the election of 

directors in accordance with Article 192-1 of the Company Act, and the shareholders 

shall elect the directors from the list of candidates. 



37 

The number of independent directors shall not be less than three, and shall not be less 

than one-third of the total number of directors. The professional qualifications, 

shareholdings, restrictions on concurrent employment, nomination and election of 

independent directors and other matters to be followed shall be in accordance with the 

relevant regulations of the competent securities authorities. 

In addition, the Company may purchase liability insurance for directors during their term 

of office in respect of their liability under the law for the scope of their execution of 

business. 

Article 22-1  The Company shall establish an Audit Committee in lieu of supervisors' duties and 

responsibilities in accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act 

effective from the re-election of new directors in 2021. The Audit Committee shall 

consist of all independent directors. The duties, charter of the Audit Committee, the 

exercise of its powers and duties, and other matters to be complied with shall be in 

accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The provisions of the Company Act, 

the Securities and Exchange Act, or other laws and regulations regarding supervisors 

are applicable mutatis mutandis to the Audit Committee. 

Article 22-2    The Board of Directors may establish various functional committees for the purpose of 

improving supervisory capabilities and strengthening management mechanism, and 

their charters shall be formulated separately in accordance with relevant laws and 

regulations and the Company's Articles of Incorporation. 

Article 23 The chairperson should be elected from among the directors with the presence of at least 

two-thirds of the directors and the consent of a majority of the directors present, and the 

chairperson shall represent the Company externally. 

Article 24 The matters to be discussed by the Board of Directors shall be in accordance with the 

provisions of Article 7 of the Rules of Procedure for the Board of Directors' Meetings. 

The Board of Directors’ meetings shall be convened by the chairperson. The Board of 

Directors’ meetings shall be convened by the director who receives the most ballots 

representing the voting rights, except for the first Board of Directors’ meeting of each 

term. The first Board of Directors’ meeting of each term shall be convened within 15 

days after re-election. The rest of the Board of Directors’ meetings shall be convened 

by the chairman of the Board of Directors every quarter. Unless otherwise provided in 

the Company Act, a resolution of the Board of Directors shall be made with the presence 

of a majority of the directors and the consent of a majority of the directors present. 

The Board of Directors’ meetings shall be convened by giving notice to the directors 

and supervisors 7 days in advance, but may be convened at any time in case of emergency. 

Notice of the convening of the Board of Directors’ meetings may be given in writing, 

by facsimile, or by e-mails. 

Article 25 The meeting chair of the Board of Directors' meeting shall be the chairperson. If the 

chairperson is absent from work or unable to exercise his or her duties and 

responsibilities for any reason, the chairperson shall designate one of the directors to act 

on his or her behalf; if the chairperson does not make such a designation, the directors 

shall elect one among themselves to act as the meeting chair. 
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Article 26 The directors shall attend the Board of Directors’ meetings in person. If a director is 

unable to attend the Board of Directors’ meetings for any reason, he/she may appoint 

another director to act as his/her proxy. Each proxy may be appointed by one person only. 

The proxy is subject to the provisions of Article 205 and Article 208 of the Company 

Act. If the Board of Directors' meeting is held by video conference, the directors who 

participate in the meeting by video are deemed to be present in person. 

Article 27 The directors shall exercise their powers and duties in accordance with the resolutions 

by the Board of Directors and the shareholders' meeting. 

Article 28 Regarding the compensation for directors, the Remuneration Committee shall evaluate 

the extent of their participation in the Company's operations and the value of their 

contributions, and the Board of Directors is authorized to determine the compensation of 

directors based on the Remuneration Committee's recommendation and taking into 

account the usual standards of the industry.  

Chapter 5 Managerial Officer 

Article 29 The Company may have a president, whose appointment, dismissal and compensation 

shall be in accordance with Article 29 of the Company Act. 

Chapter 6 Accounting 

Article 30 The fiscal year of the Company shall commence on January 1 and end on December 31. 

At the end of each fiscal year, the Company shall conduct the year-end accounting close. 

Article 31 In accordance with Article 228 of the Company Act, the Board of Directors shall prepare 

the following accounting reports at the end of each fiscal year and submit them to the 

Audit Committee for examination 30 days prior to the shareholders' meeting and then to 

the regular shareholders' meeting for adoption. 

1. Business report. 

2. Financial statements. 

3. Earnings distribution or losses make-up proposal. 

Article 32 If the Company makes a profit in a year, the Company shall set aside 6% to 15% of the 

profit as remuneration to employees, in stock or cash as resolved by the Board of 

Directors in the form of stock or cash; the Company may set aside not more than 3% of 

the above profit as remuneration to directors as resolved by the Board of Directors. 

Proposal for profit-sharing remuneration for employees and profit-sharing remuneration 

for directors should be reported to the shareholders' meeting. 

However, if the Company still has accumulated losses, the amount of loss make-up shall 

be reserved first, and then the profit-sharing remuneration for employees and directors 

can be appropriated in accordance with the aforementioned percentages. 

The Company's employee stock options, employee profit-sharing remuneration, and 

employee stock subscriptions may be granted to employees of the holding or subordinate 

companies who meet certain criteria. 

Article 33 If there is any surplus earnings as indicated by the Company’s final accounts, 10% of the 

annual earnings shall be set aside as legal reserve after paying taxes and making up for 
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accumulated losses in accordance with the law. But if the legal reserve has reached the 

Company's paid-in capital, no further provision shall be made, and the remainder shall 

be set aside as or reversed from special reserve as provided by law. If there are still 

remaining earnings, the Board of Directors shall prepare a proposal to appropriate at least 

40% of the remaining earnings for distribution as dividends/bonuses to shareholder, and 

submit it to the shareholders’ meeting for resolution on the distribution. 

The accumulated undistributed earnings of prior years may also be included in the 

distribution of earnings in the preceding paragraph. 

The Company's dividend policy is to cater to the current and future development plans 

with consideration of the investment environment, capital requirements and domestic 

and international competition, and the interests of shareholders; dividends to 

shareholders may be distributed in cash or in stocks, with cash dividends not less than 

10% of the total dividends. 

Chapter 7 Supplementary Provisions 

Article 34 Any matters not covered by these Articles of Incorporation should be handled in 

accordance with the Company Act and related regulations. 

Article 35 These Articles of Incorporation were established on June 9, 2000 by a meeting of the 

founders with the consent of all the founders. 

1st amendments May 29, 2003. 

2nd amendments May 25, 2005. 

3rd amendments June 6, 2006. 

4th amendments June 19, 2008. 

5th amendments June 19, 2009. 

6th amendments June 15, 2010. 

7th amendments June 21, 2012. 

8th amendments June 24, 2016. 

9th amendments June 22, 2017. 

10th amendments June 21, 2019. 

11th amendments June 24, 2020. 

12th amendments July 30, 2021. 

13th amendments June 24, 2022. 

14th amendments June 21, 2023 

15th amendments June 25, 2024. 
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Appendix 2: Rules of Procedure for Shareholders’ Meeting 

Article 1: In order to establish a good governance system for the Company's shareholders' meetings, 

improve the supervisory function and strengthen the management mechanism, the Company 

hereby sets forth these Rules in accordance with Article 5 of the Corporate Governance Best 

Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies. 

Article 2: The meeting procedure for the Company’s shareholders' meetings shall be governed by these 

Rules unless otherwise provided by law or the Articles of Association. 

Article 3: Unless otherwise provided by law, the Board of Directors shall convene the shareholders' 

meetings of the Company. 

The Board of Directors shall resolve any change in the format of convening a shareholders' 

meeting of the Company, and shall make such a resolution at the latest prior to the mailing 

of the notice of the shareholders' meeting. 

The Company shall send the notice of the shareholders' meeting, the proxy form, and the 

subject and explanatory materials of the proposals for adoption, discussion, and election or 

dismissal of directors to the Market Observation Post System (MOPS) 30 days prior to the 

regular shareholders' meeting or 15 days prior to the interim shareholders' meeting. 21 days 

before a regular shareholders' meeting or 15 days before a special shareholders' meeting, the 

electronic versions of the shareholders' meeting handbook and supplementary materials of 

the meeting shall be prepared and uploaded to the information reporting website designated 

by the Financial Supervisory Commission. 

However, if the Company has a paid-in capital of NT$10 billion or more as of the end of the 

most recent fiscal year, or if the shareholding of foreign and Mainland shareholders as 

recorded in the shareholders' roster for the annual  shareholders’ meeting in the most recent 

fiscal year has reached 30% or more, the electronic transmission of the aforementioned 

electronic file shall be completed 30 days before the convening of the regular shareholders' 

meeting. The meeting handbook and supplementary materials of the meeting should be made 

available to shareholders 15 days before the shareholders' meeting, and are exhibited on the 

premises of the Company and the professional stock affairs agency appointed by the 

Company, and are distributed on-site in the shareholders' meeting. 

The aforementioned handbook and supplementary information shall be made available to 

shareholders on the date of the shareholders' meeting in the following manner: 

1. When a face-to-face shareholders' meeting is held, they shall be distributed at the 

shareholders' meeting. 

2. When a video-assisted shareholders' meeting is held, they shall be distributed at the 

shareholders' meeting and transmitted to the video conference platform in electronic 

files. 

3. When a video shareholders' meeting is held, they shall be transmitted to the video 

conference platform in electronic files. 

The notice and announcement should specify the causes for convening the meeting; with the 

corresponding party's consent, the meeting notice may be given in an electronic form. 

The election or dismissal of directors and independent directors, change of the Article of 

Incorporation, reduction of capital, application for suspension of a public offering, 

permission for directors to compete for business, transfer of earnings to capital, transfer of 
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reserves to capital, dissolution, merger, demerger, or the matters set forth in Article 185, 

Paragraph 1 of the Company Act, Article 26-1 and 43-6 of the Securities and Exchange Act, 

Article 56-1 and Article 60-2 of the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of 

Securities by Securities Issuers should be listed and explained in the cause for convening and 

must not be proposed as extempore motions; the main contents thereof should be stated, and 

shall not be proposed by extempore motions;  

Where re-election of all directors and independent directors and the date of their assumption 

of offices are stated in the causes for convening the shareholders' meeting, after the 

completion of the re-election in the meeting, such date of their assumption of offices may 

not be altered by any extempore motion or other means in the same meeting. 

Shareholders holding more than 1% of the total number of issued shares may submit a 

proposal to the Company for a regular shareholders' meeting. However, the number of items 

in the proposal is limited to one. A proposal containing more than one item will not be 

included in the meeting agenda. In addition, when any of the circumstances of Paragraph 4 

of Article 172-1 of the Company Act applies to a proposal put forward by a shareholder, the 

Board of Directors may exclude it from the meeting agenda. Shareholders may submit 

proposals for the purpose of urging the Company to promote the public interest or fulfill its 

social responsibility. Procedurally, it shall be limited to one proposal in accordance with the 

relevant provisions of Article 172-1 of the Company Act, and submissions with more than 

one proposal shall not be included in the agenda.   

The Company shall announce the acceptance of shareholders' proposals, written or electronic 

means of acceptance, the place of acceptance, and the period of acceptance should be no less 

than ten days prior to the date of the regular shareholders' meeting. 

Each of such proposals is limited to 300 words, and no proposal containing more than 300 

words will be included in the meeting agenda. The shareholder making the proposal shall be 

present in person or by proxy at the annual general meeting of shareholders and take part in 

the discussion of the proposal. 

Prior to the date for issuance of notice of a shareholders’ meeting, the Company shall 

inform the shareholders who submitted proposals of the proposal screening results and shall 

list in the meeting notice the proposals that conform to the provisions of this article.  With 

regard to the proposals submitted by shareholders but not included in the agenda of the 

meeting, the cause of exclusion of such proposals and explanation shall be made by the board 

of directors at the shareholders’ meeting to be convened. 

Article 4: For each shareholders’ meeting, a shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the meeting by 

providing the proxy form issued by the Company and stating the scope of the proxy's 

authorization. 

Each shareholder may issue only one proxy form and appoint only one proxy for any given 

shareholders’ meeting and shall deliver the proxy form to the Company at least five days 

before the date of the shareholders’ meeting. When a duplicate proxy form is served, the 

one received earliest shall prevail, unless a declaration is made to cancel the previous proxy 

form. 

Once a proxy form is received by the Company, if a shareholder wishes to attend the 

shareholders’ meeting in person or to exercise their voting rights in writing or by electronic 

means, a written proxy rescission notice shall be filed with the Company two days prior to 
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the date of the shareholders’ meeting, otherwise, the voting power exercised by the 

authorized proxy at the meeting shall prevail. 

Once a proxy form is received by the Company, if a shareholder wishes to attend the 

shareholders’ meeting by electronic means, a written proxy rescission notice shall be filed 

with the Company two days prior to the date of the shareholders’ meeting, otherwise, the 

voting power exercised by the authorized proxy at the meeting shall prevail. 

Article 5: (Principles for the location and time of a shareholders' meeting) 

The location for a shareholders’ meeting shall be the premises of the Company or a place 

easily accessible to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders’ meeting. The meeting may 

begin no earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full consideration shall be given to 

independent directors’ opinions with respect to the place and time of the meeting. 

The Company shall not be restricted from holding a video shareholders' meeting on the 

location as described above. 

Article 6: (Preparation of a sign-in book and other documents) 

The Company shall state, in the meeting notice, the sign-in time and place for shareholders, 

solicitors, and proxies (hereinafter referred to as “shareholders”), and other matters that 

shall be noted. 

The above-mentioned time for the acceptance of registrations for shareholders' attendance 

shall be at least 30 minutes prior to the start of the meeting; the registration area shall be 

clearly marked, and adequate and appropriate personnel shall be assigned to handle the 

registrations; The acceptance of registrations for shareholders' meetings by video conference 

should be 30 minutes before the start of the meeting on the video conferencing platform of 

the shareholders' meeting, and the shareholders who complete the registrations shall be 

deemed to attend the shareholders' meeting in person. 

Shareholders shall attend shareholders’ meetings based on attendance cards, sign-in cards, 

or other certificates of attendance. The Company must not arbitrarily add requirements for 

other documents from the shareholders in support of their eligibility to attend.  Solicitors 

soliciting proxy forms shall also bring identification documents for verification. 

The Company shall furnish a signature book for the attending shareholders to sign in, or the 

attending shareholders shall submit a sign-in card to sign in on their behalf. 

The Company should furnish attending shareholders with the meeting handbook, annual 

report, attendance card, speaker slips, voting ballots, and other meeting materials. Where 

there is an election of directors, ballots should also be furnished. 

When a shareholder is a government or a corporation, the number of representatives to attend 

the shareholders' meeting is not limited to one. When a corporation is entrusted to attend a 

shareholders' meeting, only one representative can be appointed to attend. 

When a shareholders' meeting is held by video conference, shareholders who wish to attend 

by video conference should register with the Company two days prior to the shareholders' 

meeting. 

If a shareholders' meeting is held by video conference, the Company shall upload the meeting 

handbook, annual report and other relevant information to the video conferencing platform 
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at least 30 minutes prior to the meeting and continue to disclose them until the end of the 

meeting. 

Article 6-1:     (For a video shareholders’ meeting, matters to be included in the notice of the meeting) 

The Company shall set forth the following in the notice of shareholders' meeting when 

convening a shareholders' meeting by video means: 

1. The way shareholders participate in the video conference and exercise their rights. 

2. The handling of obstacles to the video conferencing platform or video participation due 

to natural disasters, events or other force majeure circumstances shall include at least 

the following: 

(1) The time when the aforementioned obstacles continue and cannot be removed, 

and the date when the meeting must be postponed or reconvened. 

(2) Shareholders who have not registered to participate in the original meeting by 

video conference shall not participate in the postponed or reconvened meeting. 

(3) If a video-assisted shareholders' meeting cannot be reconvened by video 

conference, the shareholders' meeting shall continue if the total number of shares 

present reaches the legal quota for the shareholders' meeting after deducting the 

number of shares attending the shareholders’ meeting by video conference, and 

the number of shares attending the shareholders’ meeting by video conference 

shall be counted in the total number of shares present for the shareholders' 

meeting, and shall be deemed abstain from all proposals for that shareholders' 

meeting. 

(4) In the event that the results of all motions have been announced and no extempore 

motion has been made, the handling method. 

3. The Company shall convene a shareholders' meeting by video conference and shall 

state the appropriate alternative measures for shareholders who have difficulties in 

participating in the shareholders' meeting by video conference. 

Article 7: (Meeting chair and attendees at shareholders' meetings) 

If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting shall be 

chaired by the Chairman. When the Chairman is on leave or unable to exercise the powers 

as the chair for any reason, the Vice Chairman shall chair the meeting on his behalf. Where 

there is no such a position as Vice Chairman or the Vice Chairman is on leave or unable to 

exercise the powers as the chair for any reason, the Chairman shall appoint one of the 

managing directors to act as the chair. Where there is no such a position as managing director, 

the Chairman shall appoint one of the directors to act as the chair. Where the Chairman fails 

to make such a designation, the managing directors or directors shall select, from among 

themselves, one person to serve as the chair. 

When a managing director or director serves as the chair, as referred to in the preceding 

paragraph, the director shall have held that position for six months or more with great 

understanding of the Company’s financial position and business conditions.  The same shall 

apply for a representative of a corporate director to serve as the chair. 

It is advisable that shareholders’ meetings convened by the Board of Directors be chaired 

by the Chairman in person and attended by a majority of the directors, and at least one 
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member of each functional committee on behalf of the committee. The attendance shall be 

recorded in the meeting minutes. 

Where a shareholders’ meeting is convened by a party with power to convene other than 

the Board of Directors, the convening party shall chair the meeting. When there are two or 

more such convening parties, they shall mutually select a chair from among themselves. 

The Company may appoint its attorneys, CPAs, or relevant persons retained by it to attend a 

shareholders’ meeting in a non-voting capacity. 

Article 8: (Evidence of the audio or video recordings of the shareholders' meeting) 

The Company shall make an uninterrupted audio and video recording of the entire process 

of the shareholders’ meeting from shareholders’ sign-in, the proceedings of the meeting, 

as well as the process of voting and vote counting. 

The audio and video recording in the preceding paragraph shall be kept for at least one year. 

If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the 

recording shall be retained until the conclusion of the litigation. 

If a shareholders' meeting is held by video conference, the Company shall keep records of 

the shareholders' registration, sign-in, attendance, questions, voting, and the Company's vote 

counting results, and shall make an uninterrupted audio and video recording of the entire 

video conference. 

The Company shall keep the aforementioned information and audio and video recordings 

throughout the life of the Company period and provide the audio and video recordings to the 

person appointed to administer the video conference for retention. 

If the shareholders' meeting is held by video means, the Company is advised to record the 

operating interface of the backend of the video conference platform. 

Article 9: Attendance at shareholders’ meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of shares. The 

number of shares in attendance shall be calculated according to the shares indicated by sign-

in book or the sign-in cards handed in, plus the number of shares whose voting rights are 

exercised by correspondence or electronically. 

The chair shall call the meeting to order upon the meeting time and disclose information 

concerning the number of non-voting shares and number of shares represented by 

shareholders attending the meeting. 

However, when the attending shareholders do not represent a majority of the total number of 

issued shares, the chair may announce a postponement, provided that no more than two such 

postponements, for a combined total of no more than one hour, may be made. When there 

are still insufficiently attending shareholders representing more than one-third of the total 

issued shares after two postponements, the meeting chair shall announce the meeting to be 

aborted. If the meeting is held by video conference, the Company shall also announce the 

meeting to be aborted on the video conferencing platform of the shareholders' meeting. 

When there are still insufficient attending shareholders representing more than one-third of 

the total issued shares after two postponements, a tentative resolution may be adopted in 

accordance with Article 175, Paragraph 1 of the Company Act and all shareholders shall be 

notified of the tentative resolution and another shareholders' meeting shall be convened 

within one month. If the shareholders' meeting is held by video conference, the shareholders 
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who wish to attend the meeting by video conference shall re-register with the Company in 

accordance with Article 6. 

When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders represent a majority of 

the total number of outstanding shares, the chair may resubmit the tentative resolution for a 

vote by the shareholders’ meeting pursuant to Article 174 of the Company Act. 

Article 10: (Proposal discussion) 

If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting agenda shall 

be set by the Board of Directors. Votes shall be cast on the proposals on the agenda one by 

one (including extempore motions and amendments to the original proposals set out in the 

agenda). The meeting shall proceed in the order set by the agenda, which may not be changed 

without a resolution by the shareholders’ meeting. The provisions of the preceding 

paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders’ meeting convened by a party with the 

power to convene other than the Board of Directors. 

The chair may not declare the meeting adjourned prior to completion of deliberation on the 

meeting agenda of the preceding two paragraphs (including extempore motions), except by 

a resolution by the shareholders’ meeting. If the chair declares the meeting adjourned in 

violation of the rules of procedure, the other members of the Board of Directors shall 

promptly assist the attending shareholders in electing a new chair in accordance with 

statutory procedures, by agreement of a majority of the votes represented by the attending 

shareholders to continue the meeting. 

The chair shall allow ample opportunity during the meeting for explanation and discussion 

of proposals and of amendments or extempore motions put forward by the shareholders; 

when the chair is of the opinion that a proposal has been discussed sufficiently to put it to a 

vote, the chair may announce the discussion closed, call for a vote, and schedule sufficient 

time for voting. 

Article 11:  (Speeches by shareholders) 

Before speaking, an attending shareholder shall specify on a speaker's slip the subject of the 

speech, their shareholder account number (or attendance card number), and account name. 

The order in which shareholders speak will be set by the chair.  

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker's slip but does not actually speak 

shall be deemed to have not spoken.  When the content of the speech is not in alignment with 

the subject on the speaker's slip, the spoken content shall prevail. 

Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder may not speak more than twice on the 

same proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes; if the shareholder's speech 

violates the rules or exceeds the scope of the proposal, the chair may have the shareholder 

stop the speech.  

Attending shareholders may not interfere with the speaking shareholders without the 

Chairman's consent and the speaking shareholders. The Chairman will have the violating 

shareholders stopped. 

When a corporate shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a shareholders’ 

meeting, only one of the representatives so appointed may speak on the same proposal. After 

an attending shareholder has spoken, the chair may respond in person or direct relevant 

personnel to respond. 
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If the shareholders' meeting is convened by video conference, shareholders participating by 

video conference may ask questions by text on the video conferencing platform after the 

meeting chair calls the meeting to order and before the meeting is adjourned, and the number 

of questions shall not exceed two for each proposal, and each time shall be limited to 200 

words, and the provisions of Paragraphs 1 to 5 shall not apply. 

If the preceding question does not violate the regulations or is within the scope of the proposal, 

it is appropriate to disclose the question on the video conferencing platform of the 

shareholders' meeting for public information. 

Article 12: (Counting of voting shares and a recusal policy) 

Votes cast at shareholders’ meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of shares. 

With respect to resolutions by a shareholders’ meeting, the number of shares held by a 

shareholder without voting rights shall not be calculated as part of the total number of 

outstanding shares. 

When a shareholder is an interested party in relation to an agenda item, and there is the 

likelihood that such a relationship would prejudice the interests of the Company, that 

shareholder may not vote on that item and may not exercise voting rights as a proxy for any 

other shareholder. 

The number of shares for which voting rights may not be exercised under the preceding 

paragraph shall not be counted toward the number of the voting rights represented by 

attending shareholders. 

With the exception of a trust enterprise or a stock affairs agency approved by the competent 

securities authority, when one person is concurrently appointed as a proxy by two or more 

shareholders, the voting rights represented by that proxy may not exceed three percent of the 

voting rights represented by the total number of the issued shares. If that percentage is 

exceeded, the voting rights in excess of that percentage shall not be included in the counting. 

Article 13: Each shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share held, except when the shares are 

restricted shares or are deemed non-voting shares under Article 179, Paragraph 2 of the 

Company Act. 

When the Company holds a shareholders’ meeting, it shall adopt the exercise of voting 

rights by electronic means and may adopt the exercise of voting rights by correspondence. 

When voting rights are exercised by correspondence or electronic means, the method of 

exercise shall be specified in the shareholders’ meeting notice. A shareholder who exercises 

his or her voting rights in writing or by electronic means is deemed to be present in person 

at the shareholders' meeting. but to have waived their rights with respect to the extempore 

motions and amendments to original proposals of that meeting; it is therefore advisable that 

the Company avoid the submission of extempore motions and amendments to original 

proposals. 

A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic means 

under the preceding paragraph shall deliver a written declaration of intent to the Company at 

least two days before the date of the shareholders’ meeting. When duplicate declarations of 

intent are delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail, except when a declaration is made 

to cancel the earlier declaration of intent. 

After a shareholder has exercised voting rights by correspondence or electronic means, in the 

event the shareholder intends to attend the shareholders’ meeting in person, a written 
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declaration of intent to retract the voting rights already exercised under the preceding 

paragraph shall be made known to the Company, by the same means by which the voting 

rights were exercised 2 business days before the date of the shareholders meeting. If the 

notice of retraction is submitted after that time, the voting rights already exercised by 

correspondence or electronic means shall prevail.writing or by way of electronic 

transmission shall prevail. If the shareholder exercises the voting right in writing or by 

electronic means and appoints a proxy with a proxy form to attend the shareholders’ 

meeting, the voting right exercised by the attending proxy at the meeting shall prevail. 

Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in the Company's Articles of 

Incorporation, the passage of a proposal shall require an affirmative vote of a majority of the 

voting rights represented by the attending shareholders. At the time of a vote, for each 

proposal, the chair or a person designated by the chair shall first announce the total number 

of voting rights represented by the attending shareholders, followed by a vote by the 

shareholders. After the public offering of the Company’s shares, at the conclusion of the 

meeting, on the same day it is held, the results for each proposal, based on the numbers of 

votes for and against and the number of abstentions, shall be entered on the MOPS. 

When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall present the 

amended or alternative proposal together with the original proposal and decide the order in 

which they will be put to a vote. When any one among them is passed, the other proposals 

will then be deemed rejected and no further voting shall be required. 

Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on proposals shall be appointed by 

the chair, provided all scrutineers be shareholders of the Company. 

Vote counting for proposals or elections at a shareholders’ meeting shall be conducted in 

public at the place of the shareholders’ meeting. Immediately after vote counting has been 

completed, the results of the voting, including the statistical tallies of the numbers of votes, 

shall be announced on-site at the meeting and recorded. 

After the meeting chair calls the Company’s shareholders’ meeting by video conference 

to order, the shareholders participating by video conference shall vote on the proposals and 

the elections through the video conferencing platform, and the voting shall be completed 

before the meeting chair announces the end of the voting, and any delay shall be deemed as 

abstention. 

If a shareholders' meeting is convened by video conference, a one-time vote count shall be 

conducted after the meeting chair announces the close of voting and the voting and election 

results shall be announced 

When the Company convenes a video-assisted shareholders' meeting, shareholders who have 

registered to attend the shareholders' meeting by video conference in accordance with Article 

6 and wish to attend the face-to-face shareholders' meeting in person shall deregister in the 

same manner as they have registered two days prior to the shareholders' meeting; if they 

deregister after that time, they can attend the shareholders' meeting by video conference only. 

A shareholder who exercises his or her voting rights in writing or by electronic means and 

does not revoke his or her declaration of intent to attend the shareholders' meeting by video 

means may not exercise his or her voting rights on the original motion or propose 

amendments to the original motion or exercise his or her voting rights on amendments to the 

original motion, except for an extempore motion. 

Article 14: (Elections) 
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In the event of an election of directors in a shareholders' meeting, the election results, 

including the list of elected directors and the number of their elected rights, should be 

announced on the spot in accordance with the relevant election regulations established by the 

Company. 

The ballots for the aforementioned election shall be sealed and signed by the vote monitoring 

personnel and kept in a safe place for at least one year. If, however, a shareholder files a 

lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the recording shall be retained until the 

conclusion of the litigation. 

Article 15: Resolutions adopted at a shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in the minutes of the 

meeting, which shall be affixed with the signature or seal of the meeting chair and shall be 

distributed to all shareholders within twenty days after the close of the meeting. The 

preparation and distribution of the meeting minutes can be done electronically. 

The distribution of the aforementioned resolutions can be entered into the Market 

Observation Post System to be publicly announced. 

The minutes of meeting should correctly record the year, month, day, location, name of the 

meeting chair, voting method, the essentials of the proceedings and the voting results 

(including the statistical weights). If there is an election of directors, the votes received by 

each nominee shall also be disclosed.  The minutes are to be kept permanently during the 

Company's existence. 

If a shareholders' meeting is held by video means, the minutes of the meeting shall include, 

in addition to the matters required to be recorded under the preceding paragraph, the starting 

and ending time of the shareholders' meeting, the method of holding the meeting, the names 

of the meeting chair and the recorder, and the method and circumstances of dealing with the 

situation in the event that the video conferencing platform or participation by video means is 

impaired due to natural disaster, event or other force majeure should be recorded. 

In addition to following the aforementioned provisions, the Company shall, when convening 

a video shareholders' meeting, state the appropriate alternative measures for shareholders 

who have difficulties in participating in the shareholders' meeting by video means. 

Article 16: (Public announcement) 

On the day of the shareholders' meeting, the Company should compile in the prescribed 

format a statistical statement of the number of shares obtained by solicitors, the number of 

shares represented by proxies, and the number of shares attended by shareholders in writing 

or by electronic means and shall make an express disclosure in the shareholders' meeting. If 

the shareholders' meeting is held by video means, the Company shall upload the 

aforementioned information to the video conferencing platform of the shareholders’ 

meeting at least 30 minutes prior to the start of the meeting and continue to disclose the 

information until the end of the meeting. 

When the Company convenes a shareholders' meeting by video means, the Company shall 

disclose the total number of shares of shareholders present on the video conferencing 

platform when the meeting is called to order. The same applies if the total number of shares 

and voting rights of shareholders present are also counted at the meeting. 

If matters put to a resolution at a shareholders' meeting constitute material information under 

applicable laws or regulations or required by TWSE (TPEx), the Company shall upload the 

content of such resolution to the Market Observation Post System within the prescribed time 

period. 
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Article 17: (Maintenance of the order of the meeting location) 

Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders’ meeting shall wear an identification 

badge or an armband. 

The chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to help maintain order at the meeting 

place.  When proctors or security personnel help maintain order at the meeting place, they 

shall wear an identification badge or an armband, reading "Proctor." 

At the place of a shareholders’ meeting, if a shareholder attempts to speak through any 

device other than the public address equipment set up by the Company, the chair may prevent 

the shareholder from so doing. 

When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the chair's correction, 

obstructing the proceedings and refusing to heed calls to stop, the chair may direct the 

proctors or security personnel to escort the shareholder from the meeting. 

Article 18: (Recess and resumption of a shareholders’ meeting) 

When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time considerations. 

If a force majeure event occurs, the chair may rule the meeting temporarily suspended and 

announce a time when, in view of the circumstances, the meeting will be resumed. 

If the meeting location is no longer available for continued use and not all of the items 

(including extempore motions) on the meeting agenda have been addressed, the shareholders’ 

meeting may adopt a resolution to resume the meeting at another location. 

A resolution may be adopted at a shareholders’ meeting to defer or resume the meeting 

within five days in accordance with Article 182 of the Company Act. 

Article 19: (Disclosure of information for video conference) 

If a shareholders' meeting is held by video conference, the Company shall disclose the voting 

results of each proposal and election results on the video conferencing platform of the 

shareholders' meeting immediately after the close of voting in accordance with the 

regulations, and shall continue to do so for at least fifteen minutes after the meeting chair 

announces the adjournment of the meeting. 

Article 20: (Location of the meeting chair and recorder of the video shareholders' meeting) 

The meeting chair and the recorder shall be present at the same venue in the country when 

the Company convenes a shareholders' meeting by video conference, and the meeting chair 

shall announce the address of such location at the time the meeting is called to order. 

Article 21: (Handling of disconnection) 

If a shareholders' meeting is held by video means, the Company may provide a simple 

connection test for shareholders before the meeting and provide relevant services 

immediately before and during the meeting to assist in handling technical problems of 

communication. 

If a shareholders' meeting is convened by video conference, the meeting chair shall, at the 

time of calling the meeting to order, separately announce, except for the circumstances 

specified in Paragraph 4, Article 44-20 of the Regulations Governing the Administration of 

Shareholder Services of Public Companies that do not require the adjournment or resumption 

of the meeting, if, before the meeting chair announces the adjournment of the meeting, there 

is an obstacle to participation on the video conferencing platform or by video means that lasts 
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for more than 30 minutes due to a natural disaster, an event or other force majeure, the 

meeting shall be adjourned and resumed within five days. The provisions of Article 182 of 

the Company Act shall not apply 

In the event of an adjournment or reconvening of a meeting under the preceding Paragraph, 

shareholders who have not registered to participate in the original meeting by video 

conference shall not participate in the postponed or reconvened meeting. 

For the postponed or reconvened meeting in accordance with the second paragraph, if a 

shareholder who has registered to attend the original shareholders' meeting by video means 

and has completed the registration for the meeting, but does not participate in the adjourned 

or reconvened meeting, the number of shares, voting rights and election rights exercised at 

the original shareholders' meeting shall be counted in the total number of shares, voting rights 

and election rights of the shareholders attending the adjourned or reconvened meeting. 

If the shareholders' meeting is adjourned or reconvened in accordance with the second 

paragraph, there is no need to discuss and resolve again if the voting and counting of votes 

have been completed and the voting results or the list of directors elected have been 

announced. 

If the Company holds a video-assisted shareholders' meeting and the video conference cannot 

be reconvened in accordance with Paragraph 2, the shareholders' meeting shall continue if 

the total number of shares present, after deducting the number of shares attending the 

shareholders' meeting by video means, still reaches the legal quota for the shareholders' 

meeting, without the need to adjourn or reconvene the meeting in accordance with Paragraph 

2. 

In the event that the meeting should be continued under the preceding paragraph, the number 

of shares attending the shareholders’ meeting by video means shall be counted in the total 

number of shares attended, but shall be deemed to be abstained for the purpose of all 

proposals at that meeting. 

If the Company adjourns or reconvenes the meeting in accordance with Paragraph 2, the 

Company shall comply with the provisions set forth in Paragraph 7, Article 44-20 of the 

Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies, 

and shall complete the relevant preliminary work in accordance with the date of the original 

shareholders' meeting and the provisions of each Article. In accordance with the latter part 

of Article 12 and Paragraph 3 of Article 13 of the Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies 

for Attendance at shareholders' meetings of Public Companies and the period set forth in 

Paragraph 2 of Article 44-5, Article 44-15 and Paragraph 1 of Article 44-17 of the 

Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies, the 

Company shall follow the date of the shareholders' meeting for the postponement or 

reconvening of the meeting as stipulated in Paragraph 2. 

Article 22: (Handling of digital gaps) 

When convening a shareholders' meeting by video means, the Company shall provide the 

appropriate alternative measures for shareholders who have difficulties in participating in the 

shareholders' meeting by video means. 

Article 23:  These Rules, and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented after approval by the 

shareholders’ meetings. 

The 1st amendments were made on November 26, 2010. 



51 

The 2nd amendments were made on June 21, 2012. 

The 3rd amendments were made on June 24, 2015. 

The 4th amendments were made on June 24, 2020. 

The 5th amendments were made on July 30, 2021. 

The 6th amendments were made on June 24, 2022. 
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Appendix 3: Impact of stock dividends on the Company's operating performance, earnings per 

share and return on shareholders' investment 

Year 

Item 

2024 

(Estimate) 

Paid-in capital at the beginning of the period NT$1,322,052,940 

Distribution of 

stock and cash 

dividends in the 

year 

Cash dividends per share $1.2 (Note 1) 

Number of allotted shares per share for capital increase from 

capital surplus 
- 

Number of allotted shares per share for capital increase from 

earnings 
- 

Changes in 

operating 

performance 

Operating profit 

Not applicable 

 (Note 2) 

Percentage of increase (decrease) in operating profit over the 

same period last year 

Net profit after tax 

Percentage of increase (decrease) in net profit after tax over the 

same period last year 

Earnings per share 

Percentage of increase (decrease) in earnings per share over the 

same period last year 

Average annual return on investment (inverse of the average 

annual price to earnings ratio) 

Pro forma earnings 

per share and price 

to earnings ratio 

If the earnings are fully 

distributed as cash dividends 

instead of being used for capital 

increase 

Pro forma earnings per share 

Pro forma average annual 

return on investment 

If there is no capital increase 

from capital surplus 

Pro forma earnings per share 

Pro forma average annual 

return on investment 

If the capital surplus and earnings 

are fully distributed as cash 

dividends instead of being used 

for capital increase 

Pro forma earnings per share 

Pro forma average annual 

return on investment 

Note 1: To be resolved at the 2025 regular shareholders' meeting. 

Note 2: The Company is not required to disclose financial forecast for 2025 in accordance with the "Regulations 

Governing the Publication of Financial Forecasts of Public Companies". 
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Appendix 4: Shareholdings of directors 

1. The paid-in capital of the Company is NT$1,367,542,070 and the number of issued 

shares is 136,754,207. 

2. In accordance with the provisions of Article 26 of the Securities and Exchange Act:  

 The minimum number of shares to be held by all directors is 8,205,252 shares (Note 1). 

3. As of the date of suspension of stock transfer for the shareholders' meeting (2025.04.28), 

the number of shares held by all directors as recorded on the shareholders' roster is as 

follows: 

Title Name Date elected  
Term of 

office  

Shareholding when 

elected 

Shareholding at present 

(Note 2) 

Number of 

shares 
Percentage 

Number of 

shares 
Percentage 

Chairperson Sheng-Chang Wu 2024/06/25 3 7,059,232 5.34% 7,059,232 5.16% 

Director 

Feng Rong 

Industrial Co., Ltd. 

Representative: 

Chi-Teng Hsieh 

2024/06/25 3 3,399,959 2.57% 3,399,959 2.49% 

Director 

Hsin Mu Energy 

Co., Ltd. 

Representative: 

Chao-Chin Li 

2024/06/25 3 2,000,380 1.51% 2,000,380 1.46% 

Director 

Chan Fun 

Investment Co., 

Ltd. 

Representative: 

Fang-Chu Hsieh  

2024/06/25 3 1,800,000 1.36% 1,800,000 1.32% 

Director Chih-Hung Yen 2024/06/25 3 5,566,837 4.21% 5,566,837 4.07% 

Director Mei-Ling Tseng 2024/06/25 3 670,782 0.51% 670,782 0.49% 

Independent director Shih-Mei Lin 2024/06/25 3 - - - - 

Independent director Chien-Min Wang 2024/06/25 3 - - - - 

Independent director Chien-Ju Lin 2024/06/25 3 - - - - 

Total shareholding of all directors  20,497,190 15.50% 20,497,190 14.99% 

Note 1: The minimum number of shares to be held is calculated at 80% of the statutory percentage because the 

requirement for independent directors is met. 

Note 2: The paid-in capital was NT$1,367,542,070 as of April 28, 2025. 

 


